
' • • ^ ' ^ - ^ ' - • ' ' ' • * 
,T •^ 'c^ f^, r v ^ "• 

^Holding 
Company 

FilingsServices 

APR 0 6 2009 

SNL Financiai, LC 
1-800-969-4121 



City 'Holding 
Company 

Dear Shareholder; 

The Economic Situation 

I need not tell you that 2008 was a very difficult year for the banking industry 
and the entire U.S. economy. Housing prices continued to decline, leading to 
record levels of mortgage delinquencies and foreclosures. Large scale and wide­
spread job layoffs occurred throughout the U.S., and the unemployment rate of 
8.1% in February of 2009 has reached levels not seen in the past 25 years. 

In the most severe economic downturn in decades, banks throughout the U.S. 
have struggled. Net income of all FDIC-insured institutions fell by 83.9% in 
2008, following a decline of 27.4% in 2007. In fact, net income of FDIC-
insured institutions was at the lowest level since 1990, with nearly one-quarter 
of all banks in the U.S. failing to show profit for 2008. Major commercial 
banks such as IndyMac, Washington Mutual, National City, and Wachovia 
either failed or were forced into mergers with stronger competitors. Major 
investment banks either converted to commercial bank charters (Goldman 
Sachs, Morgan Stanley), were acquired (Merrill Lynch), or failed (Lehman, 
Bear Stearns). 

With deteriorating loan quahty, banks have provided increasingly large 
amounts for loan losses. As a result, capital within the industry has been signif­
icantly depleted. 

Virtually every major bank in the U.S. accepted an investment by the U.S. 
Government in preferred stock under the Troubled Asset Relief Program 
(TARP) - a program that you will be glad to know City Holding Company did 
NOT participate in. 

City Holding Company's Condition 

The silver lining is that community banks such as City Holding Company have 
performed significantly better than most "big banks." Against the back-drop of 
serious challenges facing our nation's largest banks. City Holding Company 
performed relatively well in 2008. We earned $28 million, which represented a 
1.12% return on assets - significantly better than industry averages for 2008. 
Net Interest Income was up nearly 5%, branch-related service charges were up 
3.6%, trust and investment management fees were up 9.6%, and insurance 



City's Growth 

Because our Company has performed well compared to peers in this difficult environ­
ment, we have been able to focus on growing our Company rather than merely fixing 
problems. During 2008, we opened a new banking office in Hurricane, West Virginia, 
and completed renovations of several other branch banking facilities. We experienced 
commercial loan growth of over $60 million, primarily as customers of other banks 
sought out a strong local bank and chose the stability of our franchise. We hired a lead­
ing advisor in the trust and investment management field and experienced our best year 
ever in generating new investment management business as we demonstrated strong cus­
tomer service. We continued to experience significant growth in all aspects of our insur­
ance business, culminating in the December acquisition of Patton Insurance Agency based 
in Nitro, West Virginia. We anticipate continued growth within our core markets during 
2009 as we compete from a position of strength and solidify our position as the leading 
community bank in the markets that we serve. 

Many banks have been cutting or eliminating their dividends altogether. City increased 
its dividend by 10% in April of 2008 - the 5th year of 10%-i- increases in its dividend. 
At $1.36 per share on an annualized basis, our current dividend provides a favorable 
yield for our stock. As we continue to navigate through the recessionary environment, we 
are confident City can remain a strong financial performer, grow within our markets, and 
emerge from the recession better positioned to compete in the years ahead. 

Charles R. Hageboeck 
President & CEO 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

TABLE ONE 

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
(in thousands, except per share data) 

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Summary of Operations 
Total interest income 
Total interest expense 
Net interest income 
Provision for loan losses 
Total other income 
Total other expenses 
Inconie before income taxes 
hicome tax expense 
Net income 

Per Share Data 
Net income basic 
Net income diluted 
Cash dividends declared 
Book value per share 

Selected Average Balances 
Total loans 
Securities 
Interest-earning assets 
Deposits 
Long-term debt 
Shareholders' equity 
Total assets 

Selected Year-End Balances 
Net loans 
Securities 
Interest-eaming assets 
Deposits 
Long-term debt 
Shareholders' equity 
Total assets 

Performance Ratios 
Retum on average assets 
Return on average equity 
Retum on average tangible equity 
Net interest margin 
Efficiency ratio 
Dividend payout ratio 

Asset Quality 
Net charge-offs to average loans 
Provision for loan losses to average loans 
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming 

loans 
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 

ConsoUdated Capital Ratios 
Total 
Tier I Risk-based 
Tier I Leverage 
Average equity to average assets 
Average tangible equity to average tangible 

assets 

Full-time equivalent employees 

$ 147,673 
45,918 

101,755 
10,423 
21,936 
75,672 
37,596 

9,487 
28,109 

$ 1.74 
1.74 
1.36 

17.58 

$ 1,743,846 
458,446 

2,210,236 
2,015,075 

21,506 
303,189 

2,502,411 

S 1,790,090 
453,281 

2,269,743 
2,041,130 

19,047 
280,429 

2,582,446 

1.12% 
9.27 

11.44 
4.64 

46.33 
78.16 

0.33% 
0.60 

86.07 
1.23 

13.43% 
12.25 
9.47 

12.12 

10.05 

827 

$ 157,315 
60,726 
97,039 

5,350 
56,136 
71,013 
76,812 
25,786 
51,026 

$ 3.02 
3.01 
1.24 

18.14 

$ 1,717,756 
512,061 

2,257,447 
1,996,104 

24,476 
301,639 

2,511,992 

$ 1,749,440 
417,016 

2,193,829 
1,990,081 

4,973 
293,994 

2,482,767 

2.03% 
16.92 
20.99 

4.34 
45.91 
41.06 

0.18% 
0.31 

103.28 
1.00 

15.11% 
14.12 
10.31 
12.01 

9.91 

811 

$ 156,123 
53,724 

102,399 
3,801 

54,203 
71,285 
81,516 
28,329 
53,187 

$ 3.00 
2.99 
1.12 

17.46 

$ 1,649,864 
581,747 

2,268,173 
1,960,657 

85,893 
296,966 

2,517,061 

$ 1,662,064 
519,898 

2,249,801 
1,985,217 

48,069 
305,307 

2,507,807 

2.11% 
17.91 
22.37 

4.56 
44.49 
37.33 

0.23% 
0.23 

384.93 
0.92 

16.19% 
15.30 
10.79 
11.80 

9.67 

779 

$ 135,518 
38,438 
97,080 

1,400 
50,091 
69,113 
76,658 
26,370 
50,288 

$ 2.87 
2.84 
1.00 

16.14 

$ 1,514,367 
666,922 

2,186,003 
1,814,474 

137,340 
264,954 

2,402,058 

$ 1,596,037 
605,363 

2,222,641 
1,928,420 

98,425 
292,141 

2,502,597 

2.09% 
18.98 
22.34 

4.49 
46.66 
34.84 

0,38% 
0.09 

401.96 
1.04 

16.38% 
15.41 
10.97 
11.03 

9.53 

770 

$ 118,881 
31,871 
87,010 

-
50,036 
66,333 
70,713 
24,369 
46,344 

$ 2.79 
2.75 
0.88 

13.03 

$ 1,337,172 
705,032 

2,051,044 
1,659,143 

201,218 
206,571 

2,211,853 

$ 1,336,959 
679,774 

2,037,778 
1,672,723 

148,836 
216,080 

2,213,230 

2.10% 
22.43 
23.15 
4.29 

48.67 
31.54 

0.27% 
-

487.28 
1.31 

16.64% 
15.47 
10.47 
9.34 

9.08 

691 



TWO-YEAR SUMMARY OF 
COMMON STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS 

2008 
Fourth Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Second Quarter 
First Quarter 

2007 
Fourth Quarter 
Third Quarter 
Second Quarter 
First Quarter 

Cash 
Dividends 
Per Share* 

$ 0.34 
0.34 
0.34 
0.34 

$ 0.31 
0.31 
0.31 
0.31 

Market Value 
Low 

$ 29.08 
35.74 
37.29 
32.51 

$ 33.41 
31.16 
37.67 
38.04 

High 

S 42.88 
47.28 
44.15 
41.37 

$ 39.15 
39.59 
40.93 
41.54 

The Company's common stock trades on the NASDAQ 
stock market under the symbol CHCO. This table sets forth the 
cash dividends paid per share and information regarding the 
market prices per share of the Company's common stock for 
the periods indicated. The price ranges are based on 
transactions as reported on the NASDAQ stock market. At 
December 31, 2008, there were 3,043 shareholders ofrecord. 

*As more fiilly discussed under the caption Liquidity in Management's Discussion and Analysis and in Note Eighteen of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company's ability to pay dividends to its shareholders is dependent upon the ability of City 
National to pay dividends to City Holding ("Parent Company"). 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY 

City Holding Company (the "Company"), a West Virginia 
corporation headquartered in Charleston, West Virginia, is a 
bank holding company that provides diversified financial 
products and services to consumers and local businesses. 
Through its network of 69 banking offices in West Virginia 
(58), Kentucky (8), and Ohio (3), the Company provides 
credit, deposit, trust and investment management, and 
insurance products and services to its customers. In addition to 
its branch network, the Company's delivery channels include 
ATMs, check cards, interactive voice response systems, and 
intemet technology. The Company's business activities are 
currently limited to one reportable business segment, which is 
community banking. The Company has approximately 7% of 
the deposit market in West Virginia and is the third largest 
bank headquartered in West Virginia based on deposit share. 
In the Company's key markets, the Company's primary 
subsidiary, City National Bank of West Virginia ("City 
National"), generally ranks in the top three relative to deposit 
market share. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the Company conform to U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles and require 
management to make estimates and develop assumptions that 
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and 
related footnotes. These estimates and assumptions are based 
on information available to management as of the date of the 
financial statements. Actual results could differ significantly 
from management's estimates. As this information changes, 

management's estimates and assumptions used to prepare the 
Company's financial statements and related disclosures may 
also change. The most significant accounting policies followed 
by the Company are presented in Note One of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements included herein. Based on 
the valuation techniques used and the sensitivity of financial 
statement amounts to the methods, assumptions, and estimates 
underlying those amounts, management has identified the 
determination of the allowance for loan losses, income taxes, 
previously securitized loans and other than temporary 
impairment on investment securities to be the accounting areas 
that require the most subjective or complex judgments and, as 
such, could be most subject to revision as new information 
becomes available. 

Pages 15-18 ofthis Annual Report to Shareholders provide 
management's analysis of the Company's allowance for loan 
losses and related provision. The allowance for loan losses is 
maintained at a level that represents management's best 
estimate of probable losses in the loan portfolio. 
Management's determination ofthe adequacy ofthe allowance 
for loan losses is based upon an evaluation of individual 
credits in the loan portfolio, historical loan loss experience, 
current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. This 
determination is inherently subjective, as it requires material 
estimates including the amounts and timing of ftiture cash 
flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be 
susceptible to significant change. The allowance for loan 
losses related to loans considered to be impaired is generally 
evaluated based on the discounted cash flows using the 
impaired loan's initial effective interest rate or the fair value of 
the collateral for certain collateral dependent loans. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
C O N D I T I O N AND R E S U L T S O F O P E R A T I O N S (CONTINUED) 

Pages 9-10 ofthis Annual Report to Shareholders provide 
management's analysis ofthe Company's income taxes. The 
Company is subject to federal and state income taxes in the 
jurisdictions in which it conducts business. In compufing the 
provision for income taxes, management must make judgments 
regarding interpretation of laws in those jurisdictions. 
Because the application of tax laws and regulations for many 
types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations, 
amounts reported in the financial statements could be changed 
at a later date upon final determinations by taxing authorities. 
On a quarterly basis, the Company estimates its annual 
effective tax rate for the year and uses that rate to provide for 
income taxes on a year-to-date basis. 

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards 
Board ("FASB") Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB 
Statement 109" ("FIN 48") effective January 1, 2007. FIN 48 
clarifies the accounting and disclosure for uncertain tax 
positions by requiring that a tax position meet a "probable 
recognition threshold" for the benefit of the uncertain tax 
position to be recognized in the financial statements. A tax 
position that fails to meet the probable recognition threshold 
will result in either reduction of a current or deferred tax asset 
or receivable, or recording a current or deferred tax liability. 
FIN 48 also provides guidance on measurement, derecognition 
of tax benefits, classification, interim period accounting 
disclosure, and transifion requirements in accounting for 
uncertain tax positions. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 
48 was an increase in tax reserves and a decrease of $0.1 
million to the January 1, 2007 retained earnings balance. The 
Company includes interest and penalties related to income tax 
liabilities in income tax expense. The amount of unrecognized 
tax benefits could change over the next twelve months as a 
result of various factors. However, management cannot 
currently estimate the range of possible change. 

The Company is currently open to audit under the statute of 
limitations by the Internal Revenue Service for the years ended 
DecemberSI, 2005 through 2007. The Company and its 
subsidiaries state income tax retums are open to audit under 
the statute of limitations for the year ended December 31, 
2007. A tax examination by the State of West Virginia for the 
years 2004 through 2006 was completed during the third 
quarter of 2008. The final results of this examination 
decreased income tax expense by $1.1 million for the year 
ending December 31, 2008. 

Note Six of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, on 
pages 39-40 ofthis Annual Report to Shareholders, and pages 
18-19 provide management's analysis of the Company's 
previously securitized loans. The carrying value of previously 
securitized loans is determined using assumptions with regard 
to loan prepayment and default rates. Using cash flow 
modeling techniques that incorporate these assumptions, the 
Company estimates total future cash collections expected to be 
received from these loans and determines the yield at which 
the resulting discount will be accreted into income. If, upon 
periodic evaluation, the estimate of the total probable 
collections is increased or decreased, but is still greater than 
the sum of the original carrying amount less subsequent 
collections plus the discount accreted to date, and it is 
probable that collection will occur, the amount of the discount 
to be accreted is adjusted accordingly and the amount of 
periodic accretion is adjusted over the remaining lives of the 
loans. If, upon periodic evaluation, the discounted present 
value of estimated fiiture cash flows declines below the 
recorded value of previously securitized loans, an impairment 
charge would be provided through the Company's provision 
for loan losses. Please refer to Note One of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, on page 32 for further 
discussion. 

On a quarterly basis, the Company performs a review of 
investment securities to determine if any unrealized losses are 
other than temporarily impaired. Management considers the 
following, amongst other things, in its determination of the 
nature of the unrealized losses, (i) the length of time and the 
extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the 
financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and 
(iii) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its 
investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow 
for any anticipated recovery in fair value. The Company 
continues to actively monitor the market values of these 
investments along with the financial strength of the issuers 
behind these securities, as well as our entire investment 
portfolio. Based on the market information available the 
Company believes that the recent declines in market value are 
temporary and that the Company has the ability and intent to 
hold these securities until the temporary losses recover or the 
securities are called or mature. The Company cannot 
guarantee that such securities will recover and if additional 
information becomes available in the luture to suggest that the 
losses are other than temporary, the Company may need to 
record impairment charges in future periods. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
C O N D I T I O N AND R E S U L T S O F O P E R A T I O N S (CONTINUED) 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

The Company's financial perfomiance over the previous 
three years is summarized in the following table: 

2008 2007 2006 

Net income (in thousands) 
Eamings per share, basic 
Eamings per share, diluted 
ROA* 
ROE* 
ROTE* 

S 28,109 $ 51,026 $ 53,187 
S 1.74 $ 3.02 $ 3.00 
S 1.74 $ 3.01 $ 2.99 

1.12% 2.03% 2.11% 
9.27% 16.92% 17.91% 

11.44% 20.99% 22.37% 

* ROA (Retum on Average Assets) is a measure of the effectiveness of 
asset utilization. ROE (Retum on Average Equity) is a measure ofthe 
return on shareholders' investment. ROTE (Retum on Average 
Tangible Equity) is a measure of the retum on shareholders' equity 
less intangible assets. 

The Company's net income declined $22.9 million from 
2007 primarily as a result of other than temporary impairments 
of investments and an increase of $5.1 milhon in our provision 
for loan losses. Due to the actions by the federal government 
to place Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, two of our nation's 
largest Companies, into conservatorship, we recognized a 
$21.1 million other than temporary impairment charge on our 
investments in the preferred stock of these entities. As the 
recession deepened during 2008, City's investments in pools 
of debt issued by banks throughout the U.S. also deteriorated 
in value on fears that some of the banks that have issued debt 
into these pools will not survive. Based on management's 
assessment of the securities that the Company owns, the 
seniority position ofthe securities within the pools, the level of 
defaults and deferred payments within the pools, and a review 
of the financial strength of the banks within the respective 
pools, management concluded that other than temporary 
impairment charges of $16.2 million on the pooled bank tmst 
preferred securities and the income notes were necessary for 
the year ended December 31, 2008. In addition, the Company 
recognized a $1.0 million other than teraporary impairment 
charge on a corporate debt security due to Lehman Brothers 
Holdings bankmptcy filing. 

Additionally, while we have experienced some increase in 
losses on loans, our losses have not been to the extent that 
most other markets throughout the U.S. have suffered. As a 
result, our provision for loan losses was $10.4 million for the 
year (see Allowance and Provision for Loan Losse,s). The 
Company's tax equivalent net interest income increased $4.6 
million, or 4.7%, from $97.9 million in 2007 to $102.6 milhon 
in 2008, as interest expense on deposits and other interest 
bearing liabilities decreased more quickly than interest income 
from loans and investments. The Company's reported net 
interest margin expanded to 4.64% for the year ended 
December 31, 2008 as compared to 4.34%) for the year ended 
December 31, 2007 (see Net Interest Income). During 2008, 
the Company recognized a gain of $3.3 million in connection 

with Visa's successlul initial public offering ("IPO"). 
Exclusive of investment impairment losses, investment gains, 
the gain from the Visa IPO, and the gain fi-om the sale of the 
Company's merchant credit card portfolio, noninterest income 
increased $2.3 million, or 4.3%), Irom 2007 due to higher 
service charges and bank-owned life insurance revenues. 
Excluding $1.2 million of recognized losses from the 
redemption of $16.0 million of trust preferred securities during 
2007, noninterest expenses increased $3.5 million, or 4.9%), 
fi-om 2007. These fluctuations are more fully discussed under 
the caption Noninterest Income and Expense. 

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS 

Total loans increased $45.3 million, or 2.6%o, from 
December 31, 2007, as growth in commercial, home equity, 
and residential real estate loans was partially offset by declines 
in loans to depository institutions, consumer loans, and 
previously securitized loans. Commercial loan balances 
increased $60.3 million, or 8.5%), from 2007; home equity 
loans increased $42.5, or 12.4%, from 2007; and the 
outstanding balance of residential real estate loans increased 
$9.9 milhon, or 1.7%), from 2007. Loans to depository 
institutions decreased $60.0 milhon, or 100.0%), from 2007, 
while consumer loans decreased $4.7 million, or 9.1%, from 
2007. 

Between 1997 and 1999, the Company originated and 
securitized $760 million in 125%o loan-to-value junior-lien 
mortgages in six separate pools. The Company had a retained 
interest in the residual cash flows associated with these 
underlying mortgages after satisfying priority claims. When 
the notes were redeemed during 2003 and 2004, the Company 
became the beneficial owner of the mortgage loans and 
recorded the loans as "Previously Securitized Loans" within 
the loan portfolio. At December 31, 2008, the Company 
reported "Previously Securitized Loans" of $4.2 million 
compared to $6.9 milhon at December 31, 2007, a decrease of 
38.7%o. 

Total investment securities increased $36.3 million, or 
8.7%, from $417.0 million at December 31, 2007, to $453.3 
miUion at December 31, 2008. The increase in the securities 
portfolio in 2008 was related primarily to the purchase of 
mortgage backed and other debt securities. 

Total deposits increased $51.0 miUion, or 2.6% from $1.99 
billion at December 31, 2007 to $2.04 biUion at December 31, 
2008. Increases in interest bearing demand deposits of $23.0 
million and time deposits of $39.4 miflion were partially offset 
by decreases in noninterest bearing demand deposits of $15.7 
million. 

Short-term debt balances increased $32.5 million, or 
20.1%, from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008. This 
increase was primarily attributable to an increase of $36.0 
miUion in short-term borrowings from the Federal Home Loan 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
C O N D I T I O N AND R E S U L T S O F O P E R A T I O N S (CONTINUED) 
Bank of Pittsburgh ("FHLB"). The Company does not depend 
on security repurchase agreements, which are subject to 
significant fluctuations for fiinding or liquidity. 

Long-term debt balances increased $14.1 million, or 
283.0%, from 2007 to 2008. During the first quarter of 2008, 
the Company completed a private placement of $16.0 miUion 
trust preferred securities through its City Holding Capital Trast 

III subsidiary. The securities mature in 30 years and are 
redeemable at par by the Company after five years. The 
proceeds of the capital securities were used to fiand the 
redemption of all the Company's outstanding 9.15%) tmst 
preferred securities in the amount of $16.0 million, which were 
considered as short-term debt at December 31, 2007, due to 
the Company's previously announced plan to redeem these 
Debentures on April 1, 2008. 

TABLE TWO 

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS AND NET INTEREST INCOME 
(in thousands) 

ASSETS 
Loan portfolio (1): 

Residential real estate 
Home equity 

Average 

Balance 

S 607,851 

364,325 
Commercial, financial, and agriculture 713,767 
Loans to Depository Institutions 
Installment loans to individuals 
Previously securitized loans 

Total loans 
Securities: 

Taxable 
Tax-exempt (2) 

Total securities 
Loans held for sale 

Deposits in depository institutions 
Federal funds sold 

Total interest-eaming assets 
Cash and due from banks 

Premises and equipment 
Other assets 
Less: Allowance for loan losses 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Interest-bearing demand deposits 
Savings deposits 
Time deposits 

Short-term borrowings 
Long-term debt 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 
Other liabilities 
Shareholders' equity 

Total liabilities and 

shareholders' equity 

Net interest income 

Net yield on earning assets 

(1) For purposes ofthis table, loans 
(2) Computed on a fully federal tax-

1,161 

51,542 

5,200 

1,743,846 

422,708 

35,738 

458,446 

-
7,944 

-
2,210,236 

57,624 
57,183 

195,820 
(18,452) 

$2,502,411 

$ 409,799 
359,754 
921,971 

136,867 
21,506 

1,849,897 
323,551 

25,774 
303,189 

$ 2,502,411 

2008 

Interest 

S 37,495 
26,266 
47,445 

35 
5,264 
5,622 

122,127 

23,852 
2,344 

26,196 

-
171 

-
148,494 

S 2,576 
3,640 

35,691 

2,629 
1,383 

45,919 

$102,575 

on nonaccmal status have been inc 

Yield/ 

Rate 

6.17% 
7.21 

6.65 
3.01 

10.21 
108.12 

7.00 

5.64 
6.56 

5.71 

-
2.15 

-
6.72 

0.63% 

1.01 
3.87 
1.92 
6.43 

2.48 

4.64% 

Average 
Balance 

$ 597,216 
330,997 
675,598 

57,315 
46,112 
10,518 

1,717,756 

472,438 

39,623 

512,061 

-
11,940 
15,690 

2,257,447 
50,675 
48,929 

171,347 
(16,406) 

$2,511,992 

$ 418,532 

342,119 
922,886 

160,338 
24,476 

1,868,351 
312,567 

29,435 
301,639 

$ 2,511,992 

luded in average balances. 
equivalent basis assuming a tax rate ofapproximately 35%. 

2007 

Interest 

$ 36,574 
25,524 

50,771 
3,048 
5,426 
7,266 

128,609 

25,677 
2,599 

28,276 

521 
819 

158,225 

$ 4,766 
5,705 

41,355 
6,642 
1,808 

60,276 

$97,949 

Yield/ 

Rate 

6.12% 

7.71 
7.51 
5.32 

11.77 

69.08 

7.49 

5.43 

6.56 

5.52 

-
4.36 
5.22 

7.01 

1.14% 
1.67 

4.48 
4.14 
7.39 

3.23 

4.34% 

Average 
Balance 

$ 598,017 
311,854 
661,871 

8,372 

47,477 
22,273 

1,649,864 

539,634 

42,113 

581,747 

2,496 
30,633 
3,433 

2,268,173 
50,571 
43,111 

171,214 
(16,008) 

$2,517,061 

$ 433,244 

314,732 
877,592 

143,705 
85,893 

1,855,166 
335,089 

29,840 
296,966 

$2,517,061 

2006 

Interest 

$ 34,483 
24,384 
49,716 

449 
5,507 
9,406 

123,945 

28,418 
2,741 

31,159 

322 
1,478 

179 

157,083 

$ 5,284 
3,983 

34,779 

5,099 
4,579 

53,724 

$103,359 

Yield/ 

Rate 

5.77% 
7.82 

7.51 
5.36 

11.60 
42.23 

7.51 

5.27 
6.51 

5.36 
12.90 
4.82 
5.21 

6.93 

1.22% 
1.27 

3.96 
3.55 
5.33 

2.90 

4.56% 
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NET INTEREST INCOME 

2008 vs. 2007 

The Company's tax equivalent net interest income 
increased $4.6 miUion, or 4.7%, from $97.9 million in 2007 to 
$102.6 miUion in 2008, as interest expense on deposits and 
other interest bearing liabilities decreased more quickly than 
interest income from loans and investments. The Company's 
reported net interest margin expanded to 4.64%) for the year 
ended December 31, 2008 as compared to 4.34% for the year 
ended December 31, 2007. 

The Company benefited from a portfolio of interest rate 
floors with a total notional value of $600 million which 
minimized the impact of falling rates on the Company's 
interest income from variable rate loans during 2008. During 
2008, interest rate floors with total notional values of $150 
million matured and the Company sold the remaining interest 
rate floors with notional amounts totaling $450 million. The 
gain of $16.8 million from the sale ofthese interest rate floors 
will be recognized over the remaining lives of the various 
hedged loans. Partially offsetting the reduction in interest 
expense from falling market rates was a decrease of $1.6 
million in interest income from Previously Securitized Loans 
from the year ended December 31, 2007 as the average 
balances ofthese loans have decreased 50.6%. The decrease 
in average balances of Previously Securitized Loans was 
partially mitigated by an increase in the yield on these loans 
from 69.1% for the year ended December 31, 2007 to 108.1% 
for the year ended December 31, 2008. 

Average eaming assets decreased $47.2 million from 2007 
to 2008 as decreases attributable to loans to depository 
institutions, investments, and federal frinds sold were partially 
offset by increases in commercial and home equity loans. 
Average loans to depository institutions decreased $56.2 
million, average investments decreased $53.6 million, and 
federal ftinds sold decreased $15.7 million. Average securities 
decreased primarily as a result of other than temporary 
impairment charges and unrealized losses. Average liabilities 
decreased $11.1 million from 2007 as decreases in short-term 
borrowings ($23.5 million) and interest-bearing demand 
deposits ($8.7 million) were partially offset by increases in 
savings ($17.6 million) and noninterest-bearing demand 
deposits ($11.0 million). 

2007 vs. 2006 

The Company's tax equivalent net interest income 
decreased $5.4 miUion, or 5.2%o, from $103.4 miUion in 2006 
to $97.9 million in 2007. This decrease is attributable to two 
factors. First, the Company experienced a decrease of $2.1 
million in interest income from previously securitized loans for 
the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the year 
ended December 31, 2006 as the average balance of these 
loans decreased 52.8%. The decrease in average balances was 
partially mitigated by an increase in the yield on these loans 
from 42.2% for the year ended December 31, 2006 to 69.1%o 
for the year ended December 31, 2007 (see Previously 
Securitized Loans). 

Secondly, the Company's reported net interest margin 
experienced compression to A.?)A% for the year ended 
December 31, 2007 as compared to 4.56% for the year ended 
December 31, 2006. Excluding Previously Securitized Loans 
and the sale of Company's retail credit card portfolio during 
the third quarter of 2006, the Company's net interest margin, 
decreased from 4.22%) for the year ended December 31, 2006 
to 4.08%) for the year ended December 31, 2007 resulting in 
the reduction of approximately $2.9 million in net interest 
income. While the average yield on the Company's loans (net 
of Previously Securitized Loans) increased from 6.99%) for the 
year ended December 31, 2006 to 7.11%) for the year ended 
December 31, 2007, the average cost of interest bearing 
liabilities increased from 2.84%) for the year ended December 
31, 2006 to 3.19% for the year ended December 31, 2007. The 
increase in the average cost of interest bearing liabilities can in 
tum be linked to an increase in the cost of time deposits of 52 
basis points between the years ended December 31, 2006 and 
2007. 

Exclusive of interest income from previously securitized 
loans and credit cards, interest income increased $4.4 million 
from 2006 as the yield on loans exclusive of previously 
securitized loans and credit cards increased 12 basis points. 
The average balances ofthese loans increased $85.6 million 
during 2007 due to growth of loans to depository institutions, 
home equity and commercial loans. Interest income 
attributable to this growth totaled $3.0 million, while the 
improvement in yield increased interest income by $5.0 
million. Interest income on investment securities decreased 
$2.9 million from 2006 primarily as a result of lower balances 
that was partially offset by improved yields on the securities 
portfolio. 
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Increases in interest income were more than offset by an 
increase of $7.0 million in interest expense. This increase was 
primarily related to an increase in the average rate paid on 
interest bearing liabilities of 33 basis points during 2007. This 
increase was predominately attributable to an increase in the 
cost of time deposits of 52 basis points between the years 
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. 

Excluding the impact of previously securitized loans and 
the sale of the credit card portfolio, average eaming assets 
increased $7.0 million from 2006 to 2007 as increases 
attributable to loans to depository institutions, home equity 
loans, commercial loans, and federal fimds sold were partially 

offset by declines in investments and deposits in depository 
institutions. Average loans to depository institutions increased 
$48.9 milhon, average home equity loans grew $19.1 miHion, 
average commercial loans increased $13.7 million, and federal 
funds sold increased $12.3 million. Average securities 
decreased due to repayment of long-term borrowings and 
fiinding of commercial loans. The net increase in average 
eaming assets was accompanied by an increase in average 
interest-bearing deposits of $58.0 million primarily as a result 
of increased balances of time deposits. Average long-term 
debt decreased by $61.4 million and average noninterest-
bearing liabilities decreased by $22.5 million while average 
short-term borrowings increased $16.6 million. 

TABLE THREE 

RATEA/OLUME ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE 
(in thousands) 

Interest-Earning Assets 
Loan portfolio: 

Residential real estate 
Home equity 
Commercial, financial, and agriculture 
Loans to depository institutions 
Installment loans to individuals 
Previously securitized loans 

Total loans 
Securities: 

Taxable 
Tax-exempt (1) 

Total securities 
Loans held for sale 
Deposits in depository institutions 
Federal fiinds sold 

Total interest-earning assets 

Interest-Bearing Liabilities 
Interest-bearing demand deposits 
Savings deposits 
Time deposits 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term debt 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 

Net interest income 

2008 vs. 2007 
Increase (Decrease 
Due to Change In: 

Volume 

$ 651 
2,570 
2,868 

(2,986) 
639 

(3,674) 
68 

(2,703) 
(255) 

(2,958) 

-
(174) 
(819) 

$ (3,883) 

$ (99) 
294 
(41) 

(972) 
(219) 

$ (1,037) 

$ (2,846) 

$ 

S 

$ 

$ 
$ 

Rate 

270 
(1,828) 
(6,194) 

(27) 
(801) 

2,030 
(6,550) 

878 

-
878 

-
(176) 

-
(5,848) 

(2,091) 
(2,359) 
(5,623) 
(3,041) 

(206) 
(13,320) 

7,472 

) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

Net 

921 
742 

(3,326) 
(3,013) 

(162) 
(1,644) 
(6,482) 

(1,825) 
(255) 

(2,080) 

-
(350) 
(819) 

(9,731) 

(2,190) 
(2,065) 
(5,664) 
(4,013) 

(425) 
(14,357) 

4,626 

2007 vs. 2006 
Increase (Decrease) 

Volume 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

(46) 
1,497 
1,031 

-
(158) 

(4,964) 
(2,640) 

(3,539) 
(162) 

(3,701) 
(322) 
(902) 
639 

(6,926) 

(179) 
347 

1,795 
590 

(3,274) 
(721) 

(6,205) 

Due to Change In: 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

Rate 

2,137 
(357) 

24 
2,599 

77 
2,824 
7,304 

798 
20 

818 

-
(55) 

1 
8,068 

(339) 
1,375 
4,781 

953 
503 

7,273 

795 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

Net 

2,091 
1,140 
1,055 
2,599 

(81) 
(2,140) 
4,664 

(2,741) 
(142) 

(2,883) 
(322) 
(957) 
640 

1,142 

(518) 
1,722 
6,576 
1,543 

(2,771) 
6,552 

(5,410) 

(1) Fully federal taxable equivalent using a tax rate ofapproximately 35%o. 
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NONINTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE 

2008 vs. 2007 

During 2008, the Company recorded $38.3 million of 
investment impairment losses. The charges deemed to be 
other than temporary were related to agency preferreds ($21.1 
million) with remaining book value of $1.6 million at 
December 31, 2008; pooled bank trast preferreds ($14.2 
million) with remaining book value of $10.9 million at 
December 31, 2008; income notes ($2.0 milUon) with no 
remaining book value at December 31, 2008; and corporate 
debt securities ($1.0 million) with remaining book value of 
$24.6 miUion at December 31, 2008. The impairment charges 
for the agency preferred securities were due to the actions of 
the federal government to place Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae 
into conservatorship and the suspension of dividends on such 
preferred securities. The impairment charges related to the 
pooled bank tmst preferred securities and income notes were 
based on the Company's quarterly reviews of its investment 
securities for indications of losses considered to be other than 
temporary. Based on management's assessment of the 
securities the Company owns, the seniority position of the 
securities within the pools, the level of defaults and deferred 
payments within the pools, and a review of the financial 
strength of the banks within the respective pools, management 
concluded that impairment charges of $14.3 million and $2.0 
million on the pooled bank trust preferred securities and the 
income notes, respectively, were necessary for the year ended 
December 31, 2008. The $1.0 miUion impairment charge for 
corporate debt securities was due to Lehman Brothers 
Holdings bankraptcy filing. The Company had acquired this 
security as the resuh ofan acquisition of a bank in 2005. 

In addition, the Company recognized a $3.3 million gain in 
connection with Visa's successful initial public offering 
("IPO") completed in March 2008. The Company received 
approximately $2.3 million on the partial redemption of its 
equity interest in Visa. The Company's remaining Class B 
shares will be converted to Class A shares on the third 
anniversary of Visa's IPO or upon Visa's settlement of certain 
litigation matters, whichever is later. The unconverted Class B 
shares are not reflected in the Company's balance sheet at 
December 31, 2008 as the Company has no historical basis in 
these shares. Visa also escrowed a portion of the proceeds 
from the IPO to satisfy approximately $1.0 million of 
liabilities that represented the Company's proportionate share 
of legal judgments and settlements related to Visa litigation 
with American Express and Discover Financial Services. 

The Company focuses much of its efforts on retail banking 
and enhancing its retail deposit franchise within its markets. 
As a result of its strong retail banking operation, service 
charge revenues provide significant revenues for the Company. 
During 2008, noninterest income (excluding security 
transactions (including impairment charges), the gain from the 

VISA IPO, and the gain from the sale ofthe Company's retail 
credit card portfolio and merchant processing agreements) 
increased approximately $2.3 million, or 4.3%o, from 2007. 
The largest source of non-interest income is service charges 
from depository accounts, which increased $1.6 million, or 
3.6%, from $44.4 miUion in 2007 to $46.0 miUion in 2008. 
Bank owned life insurance revenues increased $0.5 million, or 
18.4%o, to $2.9 mUUon for the year ended December 31, 2008 
as a result of the Company modifying this portfolio during 
2008. In addition, tmst and investment management fees 
increased $0.2 million, or 9.7%o, and insurance commissions 
increased $0.1 miUion, or 3.0%), from the year ending 
December 31, 2007. 

During 2008, the Company fully redeemed $16.0 million of 
9.15%) trust preferred securities that had been issued in 1998. 
As a result of this redemption, the Company incurred charges 
of $1.2 million to fially amortize issuance costs incurred in 
1998 and for the early redemption premium. Excluding the 
loss on the early redemption of the trast preferred securities, 
non-interest expenses increased $3.5 miUion from $71.0 
miUion in 2007 to $74.5 miUion in 2008. Salaries and 
employee benefits increased $1.2 miflion, or 3.3%), from $36.0 
miUion in 2007 to $37.2 miUion in 2008 due in part to 
additional staffing for new retail locations. Other expenses 
increased due to additional charitable contributions of $0.75 
million during 2008. Repossessed asset losses increased $0.7 
miUion primarily due to losses and expenses incurred on the 
sale of repossessed properties associated with lending 
activities at the Greenbrier Resort in White Sulpher Springs, 
WV. Additionally, increased occupancy and equipment 
expenses of $0.5 million were primarily attributable to the 
upgrading ofthe Company's core computer system. 

2007 vs. 2006 

The Company focuses much of its efforts on retail banking 
and enhancing its retail deposit franchise within its markets. 
As a result of its strong retail banking operation, service 
charge revenues provide significant revenues for the Company. 
During 2007, noninterest income (excluding security 
transactions and the gain from the sale ofthe Company's retail 
credit card portfolio and merchant processing agreements) 
increased approximately $2.0 miUion, or 3.7%), from 2006. 
This increase was primarily attributable to the Company's 
continued increase in service charge revenues of $1.8 million, 
or 4.4%), from $42.6 miflion during 2006 to $44.4 million 
during 2007. Insurance commission revenue increased $1.8 
miflion, or 75.2%, from $2.3 miUion during 2006 to $4.1 
million during 2007 due to the hiring of additional staff by the 
Company's insurance subsidiary. City Insurance, to provide 
workers compensation insurance to West Virginia businesses 
and to bolster the number of agents focused on selling directly 
to retail customers. This increase was partially mitigated by a 
$1.7 million decrease in other income due primarily to lower 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 
credit card fee income as a resuh ofthe sale ofthe retail credit 
card portfolio during the third quarter of 2006 and the sale of 
the merchant processing agreements during the first quarter of 
2007. 

Noninterest expenses increased $1.1 million, or 1.6%o, from 
$69.9 milUon in 2006 to $71.0 million in 2007 excluding $1.4 
million of recognized losses from the redemption of $12.0 
million of tmst preferred securities during 2006. Salaries and 
employee benefits increased $1.5 million, or 4.5%, from 2006 
due in part to additional staffing for new retail locations and 
insurance personnel to support the introduction of worker's 
compensation insurance. Bankcard expenses increased $0.4 
milUon, or 19.9%), due to increased usage by customers. These 
increases were partially offset by a $0.5 million decrease in 
other expenses. The decrease in other expenses was due to a 
$1.4 miUion decrease as a resuh ofthe sales ofthe retail and 
merchant card portfolios. That decrease was partially offset by 
a $1.0 million charge related to the Company's proportionate 
share of certain losses incurred by Visa U.S.A. Inc. 

As a result of the Company's membership interest in Visa 
U.S.A. Inc. ("Visa"), the Company was allocated expense of 
approximately $1.0 million in connection with pending and 
settled antitrast litigation against Visa during the fourth quarter 
of 2007. The litigation relates to an antitrust lawsuit brought 
by American Express against Visa that originated in 2004 and 
settled as of November 9, 2007, and litigation brought by 
Discover Financial Services ("Discover") against Visa. Visa 
has described the aforementioned litigation matters and 
settlement with American Express in filings with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. City is not a named defendant in 
either ofthe aforementioned lawsuits and, therefore, will not 
be directly liable for any amount of the settlement. However, 
in accordance with Visa's by-laws, City may be required to 
share in certain losses incurred by Visa above and beyond the 
amounts described above. 

On October 3, 2007, Visa announced that it had completed 
restructuring transactions in preparation for its initial public 
offering ("IPO"). The IPO actually was completed in March 
2008. As part of this restracturing, the Company received 
approximately 150,000 Class USA shares of Visa common 
stock. Some ofthese shares were redeemed as part ofthe IPO 
and the remaining shares are to be converted to Class A shares 
on the third anniversary ofthe IPO or upon Visa's settlement 
of certain litigation matters, whichever is later. Visa applied a 
portion of the proceeds from the IPO to fund an escrow 
account to cover certain litigation judgments and settlements. 
The Company anticipates that Visa's escrow account will be 
sufficient to settle such litigation judgments and settlements 
with American Express and Discover. As a result of the IPO, 
the Company realized a recovery in 2008 ofthe $1.0 miUion 
expense previously recorded by the Company prior to the IPO. 

INCOME TAXES 

The Company recorded income tax expense of $9.5 
million, $25.8 million, and $28.3 million in 2008, 2007, and 
2006, respectively. The Company's effective tax rates for 
2008, 2007, and 2006 were 25.2%, 33.6%, and 34.8%, 
respectively. The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2008 
was largely due to the reduction in pre-tax income from higher 
loan loss provision and other than temporary impairment 
losses on investments without a corresponding decrease from 
tax-exempt sources. A reconciliation of the effective tax rate 
to the statutory rate is included in Note Thirteen of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of 
temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 
used for income tax purposes. The Company's net deferred tax 
assets increased from $20.6 million at December 31, 2007 to 
$48.5 million at December 31, 2008. The components ofthe 
Company's net deferred tax assets are disclosed in Note 
Thirteen of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Realization of the most signiflcant net deferred tax assets is 
primarily dependent on luture events taking place that will 
reverse the current deferred tax assets. For example, 
realization of the deferred tax asset attributable to other than 
temporary impairment losses on securities, which have already 
been recognized in the Company's financial statements, would 
be realized if the impaired securities were deemed to be 
"worthless" by the Intemal Revenue Service or ifthe securities 
were sold and recognized for tax purposes. During the year 
ended December 31, 2008, the Company recognized a $15.1 
million deferred tax asset associated with other than temporary 
impairment losses on securities. The deferred tax asset 
associated with unrealized securities losses is the tax impact of 
the unrealized losses on the Company's available for sale 
security portfolio. At December 31, 2008, the Company had a 
deferred tax asset of S 10.1 million associated with unrealized 
securities losses as compared to a deferred tax asset of $ 1.2 
million associated with unrealized securities losses at 
December 31, 2007. The impact ofthe Company's unrealized 
losses is noted in the Company's Consolidated Statements of 
Changes in Shareholder Equity as an adjustment to 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss). The 
deferred tax asset at December 31, 2008, would be realized if 
the unrealized losses on the Company's securities were 
realized from sales or maturities ofthe related securities. The 
deferred tax asset associated with the allowance for loan losses 
increased from $6.9 milhon at December 31, 2007 to $8.6 
miflion at December 31, 2008. The deferred tax asset 
associated with the allowance for loan losses is expected to be 
realized as additional loan charge-offs, which have already 
been provided for within the Company's financial statements, 
are recognized for tax purposes. The deferred tax asset 
associated with the Company's previously securitized loans is 
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expected to be realized as the Company recognizes income for 
financial statement purposes from these loans in future 
periods. The deferred tax asset associated with these loans 
declined from $10.0 million at December 31, 2007 to $8.8 
miUion at December 31, 2008. As discussed in Note Six of 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company had 
net recoveries on previously securitized loans of $ 1.0 million 
during 2008 that were taxable for income tax purposes, but 
will be recognized in fiiture periods for financial reporting 
purposes. The Company believes that it is more likely than not 
that each ofthe net deferred tax assets will be realized and that 
no valuation aflowance is necessary as ofDecember 31, 2008 
or 2007. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Market risk is the risk of loss due to adverse changes in 
current and future cash flows, fair values, eamings, or capital 
due to adverse movements in interest rates and other factors, 
including foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. 
Because the Company has no significant foreign exchange 
activities and holds no commodities, interest rate risk 
represents the primary risk factor affecting the Company's 
balance sheet and net interest margin. Significant changes in 
interest rates by the Federal Reserve could, in tum, result in 
similar changes in LIBOR interest rates, prime rates, and other 
benchmark interest rates that could affect the estimated fair 
value of the Company's investment securities portfolio, 
interest paid on the Company's short-term and long-term 
borrowings, interest eamed on the Company's loan portfolio, 
and interest paid on its deposit accounts. 

The Company's Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCO") 
has been delegated the responsibility of managing the 
Company's interest-sensitive balance sheet accounts to 
maximize eamings while managing interest rate risk. ALCO, 
comprised of various members of executive and senior 
management, is also responsible for establishing policies to 
monitor and limit the Company's exposure to interest rate risk 
and to manage the Company's liquidity position. ALCO 
satisfies its responsibilities through monthly meetings during 
which product pricing issues, liquidity measures, and interest 
sensitivity positions are monitored. 

In order to measure and manage its interest rate risk, the 
Company uses an asset/liability management and simulation 
sofhvare model to periodically update the interest sensitivity 
position of the Company's balance sheet. The model is also 
used to perform analyses that measure the impact on net 
interest income and capital as a result of various changes in the 
interest rate environment. Such analyses quantify the effects of 
various interest rate scenarios on projected net interest income. 

The Company's policy objective is to avoid negative 
fluctuations in net income or the economic value of equity of 
more than 15%) within a 12-month period, assuming an 
immediate parallel increase or decrease of 300 basis points. 
The Company measures the long-term risk associated with 
sustained increases and decreases in rates through analysis of 
the impact to changes in rates on the economic value of equity. 
Due to the current Federal Funds target rate of 25 basis points, 
the Company has chosen not to reflect a decrease of 25 basis 
points from current rates in its analysis. 

During 2005 and 2006, the Company entered into interest 
rate floors with a total notional value of $600 million, with 
maturities between May 2008 and June 2011. These 
derivative instmments provided the Company protection 
against the impact of declining interest rates on fiiture income 
streams from certain variable rate loans. During 2008, interest 
rate floors with a total notional value of $150 million matured. 
The remaining interest rate floors with a total notional value of 
$450 million were sold during 2008. The gains from the sales 
of these interest rate floors will be recognized over the 
remaining lives ofthe various hedged loans. At December 31, 
2008, the unrecognized gain was approximately $15.3 million. 
Please refer to Notes One and Twelve of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements for fiirther discussion ofthe 
use and accounting for such derivative instruments. 

The following table summarizes the sensitivity of the 
Company's net income to various interest rate scenarios. The 
results of the sensitivity analyses presented below differ from 
the results used intemally by ALCO in that, in the analyses 
below, interest rates are assumed to have an immediate and 
sustained parallel shock. The Company recognizes that rates 
are volatile, but rarely move with immediate and parallel 
effects. Intemally, the Company considers a variety of interest 
rate scenarios that are deemed to be possible while considering 
the level of risk it is willing to assume in "worst-case" 
scenarios such as shown by the following: 

Estimated 
Implied Federal Increase 

Immediate 
Basis Point 

Change 
in Interest Rates 

2008: 
-1-300 
4-200 
-1-100 

2007: 
+300 
+200 
+100 
-100 
-200 

Funds Rate 
Associated with 

Change in Interest 
Rates 

3.25% 
2.25 
1.25 

6.50% 
5.50 
4.50 
2.50 
1.50 

Estimated Increase 
in 

Net Income Over 
12 Months 

+9.2% 
+6.3 
+3.2 

+6.2% 
+3.4 
+0.9 
+0.5 
+1.0 

! in 
Economic Value 

of 
Equity 

+7.0% 
+4.4 
+1.1 

+14.4%o 
+10.2 

+6.1 
+2.8 
+3.2 

10 
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These results are highly dependent upon assumptions made 
by management, including, but not limited to, assumptions 
regarding the manner in which interest-bearing demand deposit 
and saving deposit accounts reprice in different interest rate 
scenarios, pricing behavior of competitors, prepayments of 
loans and deposits under alternative rate environments, and 
new business volumes and pricing. As a result, there can be no 
assurance that the resuhs above will be achieved in the event 
that interest rates increase during 2009 and beyond. The 
results above do not necessarily imply that the Company will 
experience increases in net income if market interest rates rise. 
The table above indicates how the Company's net income and 
the economic value of equity behave relative to an increase or 
decrease in rates compared to what would otherwise occur if 
rates remain stable. 

Based upon the results above, the Company believes that 
its net income is positively correlated with increasing rates as 
compared to the level of net income the Company would 
expect if interest rates remain flat. 

LIQUIDITY 

The Company evaluates the adequacy of liquidity at both 
the Parent Company level and at City National. At the Parent 
Company level, the principal source of cash is dividends from 
City National. Dividends paid by City National to the Parent 
Company are subject to certain legal and regulatory 
limitations. Generally, any dividends in amounts that exceed 
the earnings retained by City National in the current year plus 
retained net profits for the preceding two years must be 
approved by regulatory authorities. During 2007 and 2008, 
City National received regulatory approval and paid $88.6 
million of cash dividends to the Parent Company, while 
generating net profits of $78.1 million. Therefore, City 
National will be required to obtain regulatory approval prior to 
declaring any cash dividends to the Parent Company during 
2009. Although regulatory authorities have approved prior 
cash dividends, there can be no assurance that future dividend 
requests will be approved. 

During 2008, the Parent Company used cash obtained from 
the dividends received primarily to: (1) pay common dividends 
to shareholders, (2) remit interest payments on the Company's 
junior subordinated debentures, and (3) fund repurchases of 
the Company's common shares. Additional information 
conceming sources and uses of cash by the Parent Company is 
reflected in Note Twenty of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements, on page 52. 

The Parent Company anticipates continuing the payment of 
dividends, which would approximate $21.7 million on an 
annualized basis for 2009 based on common shareholders on 
record at December 31, 2008 and a dividend rate of $1.36 for 
2009. In addition to these anticipated cash needs for 2009, the 
Parent Company has operating expenses and other contractual 
obligations, which are estimated to require $0.9 million of 
additional cash over the next 12 months. As ofDecember 31, 
2008, the Parent Company reported a cash balance of 
approximately $1.4 million. 

Excluding the interest and dividend payments discussed 
above, the Parent Company has no significant commitments or 
obligations in years after 2009. Table Ten on page 20 ofthis 
Annual Report to Shareholders summarizes the contractual 
obligations of the Parent Company and City National, 
combined. 

City National manages its liquidity position in an effort to 
effectively and economically satisfy the funding needs of its 
customers and to accommodate the scheduled repayment of 
borrowings. Funds are available to City National from a 
number of sources, including depository relationships, sales 
and maturities within the investment securities portfolio, and 
borrowings from the FHLB of Pittsburgh and other financial 
institutions. As ofDecember 31, 2008, deposits and capital 
significantly fiind City National's assets. However, City 
National maintains borrowing facilities with the FHLB of 
Pittsburgh and other financial institutions that are accessed as 
necessary to fund operations and to provide contingency 
funding mechanisms. As ofDecember 31, 2008, City National 
has the capacity to borrow an additional $631.5 million from 
the FHLB of Pittsburgh and other financial institutions under 
existing borrowing facilities. During January 2009, the 
Company reduced its maximum borrowing capacity from its 
line ofcredit with the FHLB of Pittsburgh from $635.6 million 
to $350.0 million. The reduction in our maximum borrowing 
capacity was due to two factors. First, based on an intemal 
review, management determined that the likelihood that City 
National would require $630 million of borrowing capacity 
was remote. In addition, during December 2008, the FHLB of 
Pittsburgh announced the suspension of stock dividends. As 
additional FHLB of Pittsburgh stock purchases (which are 
required as additional borrowings are made) would be non­
eaming assets, management elected to lower its borrowing 
capacity with FHLB of Pittsburgh. City National maintains a 
contingency funding plan, incorporating these borrowing 
facilities, to address liquidity needs in the event of an 
institution-specific or systematic financial industry crisis. 
Additionally, City National maintains a significant percentage 
(93.6%, or $424.2 million, at December 31, 2008) of its 
investment securities portfolio in the highly liquid available-
for-sale classification. As such, these securities could be 
liquidated, if necessary, to provide an additional fimding 
source. City National also manages certain mortgage loans. 
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mortgage-backed securities, and other investment securities in 
a separate subsidiary so that it can separately monitor the asset 
quality ofthese primarily mortgage-related assets, which could 
be used to raise cash through securitization transactions or 
obtain additional equity or debt financing if necessary. 

The Company manages its asset and liability mix to 
balance its desire to maximize net interest income against its 
desire to minimize risks associated with capitalization, interest 
rate volatility, and liquidity. With respect to liquidity, the 
Company has chosen a conservative posture and believes that 
its liquidity position is strong. As illustrated in the 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the Company 
generated $54.6 million of cash from operating activities 
during 2008, primarily from interest income received on loans 
and investments, net of interest expense paid on deposits and 
borrowings. 

The Company's net loan to asset ratio is 69.3% at 
December 31, 2008 as compared to its peers (defined as U.S. 
banks with total assets between $1 billion and $3 billion as 
published by the Federal Financial Institution Examination 
Council) of 73.2%) as of September 30, 2008. The Company 
has obligations to extend credit, but these obligations are 
primarily associated with existing home equity loans that have 
predictable borrowing pattems across the portfolio. The 
Company has significant investment security balances with 
carrying values that totaled $453.3 mfllion at December 31, 
2008, and that greatly exceeded the Company's non-deposit 
sources of borrowing which totaled $260.9 million. 

The Company primarily fiinds its assets with deposits, 
which fiind 79.0%o oftotal assets as compared to 56.3%) for its 
peers. Further, the Company's deposit mix has a very high 
proportion of transaction and savings accounts that fund 
41.6%) ofthe Company's total assets. And, the Company uses 
fewer time deposits over $ 100,000 than its peers, funding just 
10.1%) oftotal assets as compared to peers, which fund 13.6%) 
oftotal assets with such deposits. And, as described under the 
caption Certificates of Deposit, the Company's large CDs are 
primarily small retail depositors rather than public and 
institutional deposits. 

INVESTMENTS 

The Company's investment portfolio increased from 
$417.0 million at December 31, 2007 to $453.3 million at 
December 31, 2008. This increase was primarily related to the 
purchase of mortgage backed and other debt securities. 

The investment portfolio remains highly liquid at 
December 31, 2008, with 93.6%) ofthe portfolio classified as 
available-for-sale. The investment portfolio is stractured to 
provide flexibility in managing liquidity needs and interest rate 
risk, while providing acceptable rates of retum. 

The majority of the Company's investment securities 
continue to be mortgage-backed securities. The mortgage-
backed securities in which the Company has invested are 
predominantly underwritten to the standards of and 
guaranteed by govemment-sponsored agencies such as FNMA 
and FHLMC. 
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C O N D I T I O N AND R E S U L T S O F O P E R A T I O N S (CONTINUED) 

TABLE FOUR 

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 

(in thousands) 
Carrying Values as ofDecember 31 
2008 2007 2006 

Securities Available-for-Sale: 
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. govemment corporations and agencies 
States and political subdivisions 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Other debt securities 

Total debt securities available-for-sale 
Equity securities and investment funds 

Total Securities Available-for-Sale 
Securities Held-to-Maturity: 

States and political subdivisions 
Other debt securities 

Total Securities Held-to-Maturity 
Total Securities 

Included in equity securities and investment fiinds in the 
table above at December 31, 2008 are $6.3 million ofFederal 
Home Loan Bank stock and $6.7 million of Federal Reserve 

$ 
41,421 

288,333 
73,634 

403,388 
20,826 

424,214 

2,834 
26,233 
29,067 

$ 453,281 

$ 250 
39,484 

259,336 
69,341 

368,411 
13,687 

382,098 

4,300 
30,618 
34,918 

$ 417,016 

$ 244 
40,448 

320,806 
52,317 

413,815 
58,583 

472,398 

5,708 
41,792 
47,500 

$ 519,898 

Bank stock. At December 31, 2008, there were no securities of 
any non-govemmental issuers whose aggregate carrying or 
market value exceeded 10% of shareholders' equity. 

(dollars in thousands) 

Within 
One Year 

Amount Yield 

Maturing 
After One But After Five But 

Within Five Years Within Ten Years 
Amount Yield Amount Yield 

After 
Ten Years 

Amount Yield 

650 5.74 % 
100 5.50 

750 

120 

5.71 

7.50 

Securities Available-for-Sale: 
States and political subdivisions 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Other debt securities 

Total debt securities 
available-for-sale 

Securities Held-to-Maturity: 
States and political subdivisions 
Other debt securities 

Total debt securities held-to-
maturify 

Total debt securities 

Weighted-average yields on tax-exempt obligations of 
states and political subdivisions have been computed on a fully 
federal tax-equivalent basis using a tax rate of 39.35%). 
Average yields on investments available-for-sale are computed 

12,312 
892 

1,480 

6.79% 
6.00 
6.88 

14,228 
54,410 
12,123 

6.86 % 
4.30 
6.36 

$ 14,232 
232,930 

60,031 

6.86' 
4.55 
8.07 

14,684 

2,714 

6.75 

7.37 

80,761 5.06 307,193 5.34 

$ 

-

120 
870 

-

7.50 
5.96% 

-

2,714 
$ 17,398 

-

7.37 
6.85% 

-

$ 80,761 

-

_ 

5.06% 

26,233 

26,233 
$333,426 

9.78 

9.78 
5.69% 

based on amortized cost. Mortgage-backed securities have 
been allocated to their respective maturity groupings based on 
their contractual maturity. 
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LOANS 

TABLE FIVE 

LOAN PORTFOLIO 

The composition ofthe Company's loan portfolio at December 31 follows: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Residential real estate - mortgage 
Home equity 
Commercial, financial, and agriculture 
Loans to Depository Institutions 
Installment loans to individuals 
Previously securitized loans 

Gross loans 

$ 611,962 
384,320 
768,255 

-
43,585 

4,222 
$ 1,812,344 

$ 602,057 
341,818 
707,987 

60,000 
48,267 

6,892 
$ 1,767,021 

$ 

$ 

598,502 
321,708 
673,719 
25,000 
42,943 
15,597 

1,677,469 

$ 592,521 
301,728 
629,670 

-
58,652 
30,256 

$ 1,612,827 
^ ^ ^ 

$ 469,458 
308,173 
472,112 

-
46,595 
58,436 

$ 1,354,774 

During 2008, commercial loans increased $60.3 million, or 
8.5%, from $708.0 miflion at December 31, 2007, to $768.3 
miUion at December 31, 2008. The Company's ability to 
successfully attract new commercial relationships contributed 
significantly to this increase. At December 31, 2008, $55.8 
million of the commercial loans were for commercial 
properties under construction. Home equity loans increased 
$42.5 million, or 12.4%, from $341.8 miUion at December 31, 
2007, to $384.3 miUion at December 31, 2008. Residential 
real estate loans increased $9.9 miflion, or 1.6%), from $602.1 
mfllion at December 31, 2007 to $612.0 million at December 
31, 2008. Residential real estate loans are primarily for single-
family 1, 3, 5 and 10 year adjustable rate mortgages with terms 
that amortize the loans over periods from 15-30 years. Our 
mortgage products do not include sub-prime, interest only, or 
option adjustable rate mortgage products. At December 31, 
2008, $5.0 million ofthe residential real estate loans were for 
properties under constraction. 

The Company's loans to depository institutions decreased 
$60.0 miUion, or 100.0%, from December 31, 2007. 
Installment loans decreased $4.7 miflion, or 9.7%), from $48.3 
mflhon at December 31, 2007 to $43.6 million at December 
31,2008. 

As of December 31, 2008, the Company reported $4.2 
million of loans classified as "previously securitized loans." 
These loans were recorded as a result ofthe Company's early 
redemption of the outstanding notes attributable to the 
Company's six loan securitization trasts (see Retained 
Interests and Previously Securitized Loans). As the 
outstanding notes were redeemed during 2004 and 2003, the 

Company became the beneficial owner of the remaining 
mortgage loans and recorded the carrying amount of those 
loans within the loan portfolio, classified as "previously 
securitized loans." These loans are junior lien mortgage loans 
on one- to four-family residential properties located 
throughout the United States. The loans generally have 
contractual terms of 25 or 30 years and have fixed interest 
rates. The Company expects this balance to continue to decline 
as borrowers remit principal payments on the loans. 

The following table shows the scheduled maturity of loans 
outstanding as of December 31, 2008: 

(in thousands) 1 

Residential real 
estate - mortgage $ 

Home equity 
Commercial, 

financial, and 
agriculture 

Installment loans to 
individuals 

Previously 
securitized loans 

Total loans $ 

Loans maturing after one 
interest rates that are: 

Fixed until maturity 
Variable or adjustable 

Total 

Within 
3ne Year 

236,423 
80,462 

304,890 

23,189 

1,027 
645,991 

year with 

After One 
But Within 
Five Years 

$ 338,076 
149,956 

362,596 

20,291 

1,833 
$ 872,752 

$ 255,983 
910,370 

$ 1,166,353 

After 
Five Years 

$ 37,463 
153,902 

100,769 

105 

1,362 
$ 293,601 

Total 

$ 611,962 
384,320 

768,255 

43,585 

4,222 
$ 1,812,344 

14 
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ALLOWANCE AND PROVISION FOR LOAN 

LOSSES 

Management systematically monitors the loan portfolio and 
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on a quarterly 
basis to provide for probable losses inherent in the portfolio. 
Management assesses the risk in each loan type based on 
historical trends, the general economic environment ofits local 
markets, individual loan performance, and other relevant 
factors. Individual credits are selected throughout the year for 
detailed loan reviews, which are utilized by management to 
assess the risk in the portfolio and the adequacy of the 
allowance. Due to the nature of commercial lending, 
evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance as it relates to 
these loan types is often based more upon specific credit 
review, with consideration given to the potential impairment of 
certain credits and historical loss rates, adjusted for general 
economic conditions and other inherent risk factors. 
Conversely, due to the homogeneous nature of the real estate 
and installment portfolios, the portions of the allowance 
allocated to those portfolios are primarily based on prior loss 
history of each portfolio, adjusted for general economic 
conditions and other inherent risk factors. 

In evaluating the adequacy ofthe allowance for loan losses, 
management considers both quantitative and qualitative 
factors. Quantitative factors include actual repayment 
characteristics and loan performance, cash flow analyses, and 
estimated fair values of underlying coUateral. Qualitative 
factors generally include overall trends within the portfolio, 
composition of the portfolio, changes in pricing or 
underwriting, seasoning ofthe portfolio, and general economic 
conditions, 

The allowance not specifically allocated to individual 
credits is generally determined by analyzing potential exposure 
and other qualitative factors that could negatively impact the 
adequacy of the allowance. Loans not individually evaluated 
for impairment are grouped by pools with similar risk 
characteristics and the related historical loss rates are adjusted 
to reflect current inherent risk factors, such as unemployment, 
overafl economic conditions, concentrations of credit, loan 
growth, classified and impaired loan trends, staffing, 
adherence to lending policies, and loss trends. 

Determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan 
losses is subjective in nature and requires management to 
periodically reassess the validity of its assumptions. 
Differences between actual losses and estimated losses are 
assessed such that management can timely modify its 
evaluation model to ensure that adequate provision has been 
made for risk in the total loan portfolio. 

Based on management's analysis of the adequacy of the 
allowance for loan losses during 2008, management 
determined it was appropriate to record a provision for loan 

losses of $10.4 miUion. The provision for loan losses recorded 
during 2008 reflects the difficulties encountered by certain 
commercial borrowers of the Company (as discussed below), 
the downgrade of their related credits, and management's 
assessment of the impact of these difficulties on the ultimate 
collectabilify of the loans. Additionally, the provision reflects 
an increase in the balance of commercial loans during the year. 
Changes in the amount of the provision and related allowance 
are based on the Company's detailed methodology and are 
directionally consistent with changes in the growth, 
composition, and the quality ofthe Company's loan portfolio. 
The Company believes that its methodology for determining 
its allowance for loan losses adequately provides for probable 
losses inherent in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2008. 

The Company had net charge-offs of $5.8 million for the 
year ended December 31 2008. Net charge-offs on 
commercial and residential loans were $3.0 and $1.4 million, 
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2008. Charge­
offs for commercial and residential loans were primarily 
related to loans that had been appropriately considered in 
establishing the allowance for loan losses in prior periods. In 
addition, overdrawn depository accounts experienced net 
charge-offs of $1.4 million during 2008. While charge-offs on 
depository accounts are appropriately taken against the ALLL, 
the revenue associated with depository accounts is reflected in 
service charges. 

The Company's ratio of non-performing assets to total 
loans and other real estate owned increased from 1.20%o at 
December 31, 2007 to 1.64% at December 31, 2008. This 
increase is attributable primarily to the difficulties encountered 
by certain commercial customers described below during 2008 
and their related borrowings have been classified as 
substandard. 

Approximately 48%o of the Company's nonperforming 
loans at December 31, 2008, or approximately $12 miflion, 
were associated with a $17 million portfolio of loans to 
builders of speculative homes at the Greenbrier Resort in 
White Sulphur Springs, West Virginia. These loans are 
considered to be commercial loans due to the dollar amount of 
the borrowings, although the loans were used to purchase lots 
and to constract upper-scale single-family residences at the 
Greenbrier Resort. Constraction loan terms were originally 
interest only for 12 months. All loans are collateralized by 
completed homes and eight residential lots. Through 
December 31, 2008, the Company has specifically reserved 
$3.6 million of the allowance for loan losses and had 
additionally charged-off $0.9 million associated with this 
portfolio of speculative properties. During the first quarter of 
2009, two of the completed residences were foreclosed and 
taken into the Company's Other Real Estate Owned. The 
Greenbrier Resort has a long history and tradition as a top 
resort destination and is owned by CSX Corporation. 
However, the current economic scenario has been challenging 
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for the Greenbrier, which lost $35 million in 2008 according to 
CSX Corporation. Additionally, CSX Corporation has 
reported hiring Goldman Sachs, an investment banking firm, to 
apprise them of their strategic options regarding the 
Greenbrier. The Company has considered the uncertainty of 
the situation at the Greenbrier, arising in the fourth quarter of 
2008, and has increased the provision for loan losses relative 
to this portfolio of speculative builders by $ 1.15 million during 
the fourth quarter of 2008. Based on our analysis, the 
Company believes that the allowance allocated to the 
nonperforming and substandard loans, after considering the 
value ofthe collateral securing such loans, is adequate to cover 
losses that may resuh from these loans at December 31, 2008. 
While the Company's non-performing assets have increased, 
our ratio of non-performing assets to total loans and other real 
estate owned is 136 basis points lower than that of our peer 
group (bank holding compames with total assets between $1 
and $5 billion), which reported average non-performing assets 
as a percentage ofloans and other real estate owned of 3.00%) 
for the most recently reported quarter ended September 30, 
2008. The Company's non-performing assets are 
disproportionately tied to two sub-sectors within the loan 
portfolio. 

In addition to the 48%o of the Company's non-performing 
loans associated with speculative builders at the Greenbrier, 
slightly more than 25%) of the Company's non-performing 
assets are associated with real estate in what is known as the 
"Eastem Panhandle" of West Virginia - the counties of 
Jefferson, Berkeley, and Morgan. These three counties are all 
considered distant suburbs of the Washington D.C. MSA and 
have experienced explosive growth in the last 10 years. While 
this is a relatively small part ofthe Company's entire franchise 
(representing approximately 16%) ofthe Company's total loans 
outstanding at December 31, 2008), the downtum that has 
gripped the nation's mortgage and constraction industry has 
had disproportionately more impact upon the Company's asset 
quality and provision in this region than in the remainder of 
the Company. Exclusive of loans to speculative builders at the 
Greenbrier or loans in the Eastern Panhandle, other loans 
throughout the Company account for only 27%) of the 
Company's non-performing loans. The Company believes its 
methodology for determining the adequacy of its allowance 
adequately provides for probable losses inherent in the loan 
portfolio and produces a provision for loan losses that is 
directionally consistent with changes in asset quality and loss 
experience. 

The allowance allocated to the commercial loan portfolio 
increased $4.0 million, or 36.0%), from $11.1 mflhon at 
December 31, 2007 to $15.1 miUion at December 31, 2008. 
This increase was due to recent trends in the commercial 
portfolio and increases in commercial balances. As discussed 
previously, borrowers involved in speculative building at the 
Greenbrier and real estate lending in the "Eastern Panhandle" 

of West Virginia, encountered difficulties during 2008 that 
resulted in their loans being classified as substandard and 
allowances being allocated as necessary for potential losses. 
These loans are considered commercial real estate due to the 
intent ofthe borrowers to sell the properties and the amount of 
the loans. As of December 31, 2008, commercial balances 
totaled $768.3 million, a $60.3 mfllion (8.5%o) increase from 
December 31, 2007. 

The allowance allocated to the real estate portfolio 
increased from $3.6 million at December 31, 2007 to 
$4.6 million at December 31, 2008. Increases in balances in 
this portfolio of 1.6%o from December 31, 2007 have been 
partially offset by improvements in the asset qualify of this 
portfolio. The majority of our market areas have experienced 
only modest increases and decreases in price over the last 5 
years. An area that the Company serves that has experienced 
some declines in the market values of residential real estate 
properties has been the "Eastera Panhandle" of West Virginia. 
The estimated impact of potential decreases has been 
appropriately considered in our quarterly evaluation of the 
adequacy ofthe allowance for loan losses. 

The allowance allocated to the consuraer loan portfolio 
decreased $0.1 million, or 45.2%), from $0.3 million at 
Deceraber 31, 2007 to $0.2 raiUion at Deceraber 31, 2008. The 
decrease was attributable to changes in loss experience which 
decreased 46% from December 31, 2006 to December 31, 
2007. This decrease was partially offset by an increase of $4.7 
mfllion, or 9.7%, in consumer loans from December 31, 2007 
to December 31, 2008. 

Certain products offered by the Company perrait custoraers 
to overdraft their depository accounts. While the Company 
generates service charge revenues for providing this service to 
the customer, certain deposit account overdrafts are not fully 
repaid by the customer resulting in losses incurred. The 
Company has provided for probable losses resulting from 
overdraft deposit account borrowings through its allowance for 
loan losses. As reflected in Table Six, the Company reported 
net charge-offs on depository accounts of $1.4 and $2.0 
raillion during 2008 and 2007, respectively. As of Deceraber 
31, 2008, the balance of overdraft deposit accounts was $2.6 
million and is included in installment loans to individuals in 
Note Four of Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateraents. The 
Company allocated $2.4 million (see Table Eight) of its 
allowance for loan losses as ofDeceraber 31, 2008, to provide 
for probable losses resulting from overdraft deposit accounts. 

As previously discussed, the carrying value of the 
previously securitized loans incorporates an assuraption for 
expected cash flows to be received over the life ofthese loans. 
To the extent that the present value of expected cash flows is 
less than the carrying value ofthese loans, the Company would 
provide for such losses through the provision and allowance 
for loan losses. 
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Based on the Company's analysis of the adequacy of the 
allowance for loan losses and in consideration of the known 
factors utilized in computing the allowance, management 
believes that the allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 
2008, is adequate to provide for probable losses inherent in the 

Corapany's loan portfolio. Future provisions for loan losses 
will be dependent upon trends in loan balances including the 
composition of the loan portfolio, changes in loan qualify and 
loss experience trends, and recoveries of previously charged-
off loans, among other factors. 

TABLE SIX 

ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 
An analysis ofchanges in the allowance for loan losses follows: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Balance at beginning ofyear 

Allowance frora acquisition 
Reduction ofallowance for loans sold 
Charge-offs: 

Coraraercial, financial, and agricultural 
Real estate-mortgage 
Installment loans to individuals 
Overdraft deposit accounts 
Totals 

Recoveries: 
Commercial, fmancial, and agricultural 
Real estate-mortgage 
Installraent loans to individuals 
Overdraft deposit accounts 
Totals 

Net charge-offs 
Provision for loan losses 
Balance at end ofyear 

As a Percent of Average Total Loans 
Net charge-offs 
Provision for loan losses 

As a Percent of Nonperforming and Potential Problem Loans 
Allowance for loan losses 

$ 17,581 

-

(3,064) 
(1,590) 
(243) 

(3,151) 
(8,048) 

38 
223 
296 

1,741 

$ 15,405 

-

(514) 
(1,006) 
(343) 

(3,789) 
(5,652) 

231 
87 

416 
1,744 

$ 16,790 

(1,368)* 

(1,279) 
(935) 
(898) 

(3,823) 
(6,935) 

210 
575 
598 

1,734 

$ 17,815 

3,265 

(1,673) 
(1,491) 
(1,711) 
(3,584) 
(8,459) 

605 
303 
679 

1,182 

$ 21,426 

-

(2,040) 
(1,164) 
(2,071) 
(2,614) 

(7,889) 

1,809 
576 
792 

1,101 

2,298 
(5,750) 
10,423 

$ 22,254 

2,478 
(3,174) 
5,350 

$ 17,581 

3,117 
(3,818) 
3,801 

$ 15,405 

2,769 
(5,690) 
1,400 

$ 16,790 

4,278 

(3,611) 

$ 17,815 

0.33% 
0.60 

0.18% 
0.31 

0.23% 
0.23 

0.38% 
0.09 

0.27% 

86.07% 104.49% 384.93% 401.96% 487.28% 

• The Company is not under any commitment to repurchase any ofthe outstanding balances sold with respect to this sale. 

TABLE SEVEN 

NON-ACCRUAL, PAST-DUE AND RESTRUCTURED LOANS 
Nonperforming assets at Deceraber 31 follows: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Non-accraal loans 
Accraing loans past due 90 days or more 
Previously securitized loans past due 90 days or more 

The increase in non-accrual loans is directly related to the 
difficulties encountered by borrowers involved in speculative 
building at the Greenbrier and in the "Eastern Panhandle" of 

$ 25,224 
623 
10 

$ 16,437 
314 
76 

$ 3,319 
635 
48 

$ 2,785 
1,124 
268 

$ 2,147 
677 
832 

$ 25,857 $ 16,827 $ 4,002 $ 4,177 $ 3,656 

West Virginia as discussed previously. At December 31, 
2008, manageraent was not aware of any other potential 
problem loans other than those included in Table Seven. 
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The Company recognized approximately $1.2 miUion, $0.8 
mUlion, and $0.1 miflion of interest income received in cash 
on non-accraal and impaired loans in 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively. Approxiraately $0.3 raillion, $0.4 raillion, and 
$0.2 raillion of interest incorae would have been recognized 
during 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, if such loans had 
been current in accordance with their original terms. There 
were no commitments to provide additional funds on non-
accrual, impaired, or other potential problera loans at 
December 31, 2008 and 2007. 

Interest on loans is accrued and credited to operations 
based upon the principal amount outstanding. The accraal of 
interest income is generally discontinued when a loan becoraes 
90 days past due as to principal or interest unless the loan is 
well collateralized and in the process of collection. When 
interest accmals are discontinued, interest credited to incorae 
in the current year that is unpaid and deeraed uncollectible is 
charged to operations. Prior-year interest accraals that are 
unpaid and deeraed uncollectible are charged to the allowance 
for loan losses, provided that such amounts were specifically 
reserved. 

TABLE EIGHT 

ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 
A summary ofthe allocation ofthe allowance for loan losses by loan type at December 31 follows: 

(dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 

Commercial, financial 
and agricultural 

Residential real estate-
mortgage 

Installraent loans to 
individuals 

Overdraft deposit 
accounts 

Amount 

$ 15,128 

4,583 

190 

2,353 
$ 22,254 

Percent 
ofLoans 
in Each 

Category 
to Total 
Loans 

42% 

55 

3 

-
100% 

PREVIOUSLY SECURITIZED LOANS 

Overview: Between 1997 and 

Amount 

$ 11,097 

3,605 

347 

2,532 
$ 17,581 

1999, the Compa 

Percent 
ofLoans 
in Each 

Category 
to Total 
Loans 

43% 

54 

3 

-
100% 

ny 

Amount 

$ 8,330 

3,981 

801 

2,293 
$ 15,405 

Percent 
ofLoans 
in Each 

Category 
to Total 
Loans 

40% 

56 

4 

-
100% 

Amount 

$ 7,613 

3,977 

2,819 

2,381 
$ 16,790 

Percent 
ofLoans 
in Each 

Category 
to Total 
Loans 

39% 

57 

4 

-
100% 

Amount 

$ 10,655 

3,151 

2,552 

1,457 
$ 17,815 

Percent 
ofLoans 
in Each 

Category 
to Total 
Loans 

35% 

62 

3 

-
100% 

expected prepayment and default rates, the carrying value of 
the loans were generally less than the ; actual outstanding 

^ o m l - i o f ^ l O n n S QTirl 

originated and securitized approximately $759.8 million in 
125%) loan to junior-lien underlying mortgages in six separate 
pools. The Company had a retained interest in the 
securitizations. Principal araounts owed to investors in the 
securitizations were evidenced by securities ("Notes"). During 
2004 and 2003, the Company exercised its early rederaption 
option on each of those securitizations. Once the Notes were 
redeeraed, the Corapany became the beneficial owner of the 
underlying raortgage loans and recorded the loans as assets of 
the Corapany within the loan portfolio. 

As the Company redeemed the outstanding Notes, no gain 
or loss was recognized in the Company's financial statements 
and the remaining mortgage loans were recorded in the 
Company's loan portfolio as "previously securitized loans," at 
the lower of carrying value or fair value. Because the carrying 
value of the mortgage loans incorporated assumptions for 

2007, the Company reported a carrying value of previously 
securitized loans of $4.2 million and $6.9 miflion, 
respectively, while the actual outstanding contractual balance 
of these loans was $19.0 raillion and $24.1 miflion, 
respectively. The Corapany accounts for the difference 
between the carrying value and the outstanding balance of 
previously securitized loans as an adjustment of the yield 
earned on these loans over their reraaining lives. The discount 
is accreted to incorae over the period during which payraents 
are probable of collection and are reasonably estiraable. If, 
upon periodic evaluation, the estimate of the total probable 
collections is reduced below the original value ofthe loans, an 
impairment charge would be provided through the Company's 
provision for loan losses. For a further discussion of the 
accounting policies for previously securitized loans, please see 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 
Note One to the Consolidated Financial Statements, on page 
32 ofthis Annual Report to Shareholders. 

During 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company recognized 
$5.6 miUion, $7.3 miUion, and $9.4 miflion, respectively, of 
interest incorae on its previously securitized loans. Cash 
receipts for 2008, 2007, and 2006 are suraraarized in the 
following table: 

(in thousands) 

Principal receipts 
Interest receipts 
Total cash receipts 

Key assuraptions used in estiraating the cash flows and fair 
value of the Company's previously securitized loans as of 
Deceraber 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows: 

December 31 
2008 2007 

2008 2007 

$ 5,458 $ 12,207 
2,965 3,855 

$ 8,423 $ 16,062 

2006 

$ 18,829 
5,374 

$ 24,203 

Prepayment speed (CPR): 
From January 2008 - March 2008 
From April 2008 - December 2008 
From January 2009 - December 2009 
From January 2010 - December 2012 
Thereafter 

Weighted-average cumulative defaults 

9% 
9% 
5% 

9.39% 

16% 
15% 
13% 
9% 
5% 

9.54% 

The balances of previously securitized loans are comprised 
of six different pools. The Company monitors prepayments by 
pool and as a result of updated information, the prepayraent 
factors are updated accordingly. 

The projected curaulative default rate is coraputed using 
actual loan defaults experienced life-to-date plus forecasted 
loan defaults projected over the reraaining expected life ofthe 
loans. 

Summarv: The following table sumraarizes the activity 
with the reported balance of previously securitized loans 
during 2008 and 2007 and illustrates the irapact on these 
balances of converting the retained interest asset to loans: 

(in thousands) 

Previously 
Securitized 

Loans 

Balance at December 31, 2006 
Principal payments on mortgage loans received from 

borrowers 
Discount accretion 
Balance at December 31, 2007 
Principal payments on mortgage loans received from 

borrowers 
Discount accretion 
Balance at December 31, 2008 

GOODWILL 

$ 15,597 

(12,207) 
3,502 

$ 6,892 

(5,458) 
2,788 

$ 4,222 

The Corapany evaluates the recoverability of goodwill and 
indefinite lived intangible assets annually as of Noveraber 30, 
or raore frequently if events or changes in circurastances 
warrant, such as a material adverse change in the business. 
Goodwill is considered to be impaired when the carrying value 
of a reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. Indefinite-
lived intangible assets are considered impaired if their carrying 
value exceeds their estimated fair value. As described in Note 
One ofthe Corapany's Consolidated Financial Stateraents, the 
Corapany conducts its business activities through one 
reportable business segraent - community banking. Fair values 
are estimated by reviewing the Corapany's stock price as it 
corapares to book value and the Corapany's reported eamings. 
In addition, the irapact of ftiture eamings and activities are 
considered in the Company's analysis. The Corapany has 
$54.9 million of goodwill at December 31, 2008. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
C O N D I T I O N AND R E S U L T S O F O P E R A T I O N S (CONTINUED) 

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 

Scheduled raaturities of tirae certificates of deposit of 
$100,000 or raore outstanding at Deceraber 31, 2008, are 
suraraarized in Table Nine. The Corapany has tirae certificates 

of deposit of $100,000 or more totaling $262.0 million. These 
deposits are primarily small retail depositors of the bank as 
deraonstrated by the average balance of time certificates of 
deposit of $100,000 or more being less than $150,000. 

TABLE NINE 

MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT OF $100,000 OR MORE 

(in thousands) Amounts Percentage 

Three months or less 
Over three raonths through six months 
Over six months through twelve raonths 
Over twelve months 
Total 

51,723 
52,036 
55,980 

102,288 
262,027 

20% 
20 
21 
39 

100% 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

The Company has various financial obligations that may 
require future cash payments according to the terms of the 
obligations. Demand, both noninterest- and interest-bearing, 
and savings deposits are, generally, payable imraediately upon 
deraand at the request of the customer. Therefore, the 
contractual maturity of these obligations is presented in the 
following table as "less than one year." Tirae deposits, 
typically CDs, are custoraer deposits that are evidenced by an 
agreement between the Company and the customer that specify 

TABLE TEN 
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

(in thousands) 

stated raaturify dates and early withdrawals by the custoraer 
are subject to penalties assessed by the Corapany. Short-term 
borrowings and long-terra debt represent borrowings of the 
Corapany and have stated maturity dates. The Corapany is not 
a party to any raaterial capital or operating leases as of 
December 31, 2008. The composition of the Corapany's 
contractual obligations as of December 31, 2008 is presented 
in the following table: 

Contractual Maturify in 
Less than One Between One Between Three Greater than 

Year and Three Years and Five Years Five Years Total 

Noninterest-bearing demand deposits 
Interest-bearing deraand deposits ^̂^ 
Savings deposits ^'' 
Time deposits *̂ '' 
Short-term borrowings ^'' 
Long-term debt "̂ '̂  

Total Contractual Obligations 

$ 298,530 
422,484 
357,417 
642,176 
204,589 

1,030 
$ 1,926,226 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-

330,561 
-

4,007 
334,568 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-

45,204 
-

2,348 
47,552 

149 

19,003 
$ 19,152 

298,530 
422,484 
357,417 

1,018,090 
204,589 

26,388 
2,327,498 

- Includes interest on both fixed- and variable-rate obligations. The interest associated with variable-rate obligations is based upon 
interest rates in effect at Deceraber 31, 2008. The contractual araounts to be paid on variable-rate obligations are affected by raarket 
interest rates that could materially affect the contractual araounts to be paid. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 

The Corapany's liabilify for uncertain tax positions at 
December 31, 2008 was $0.3 raUlion pursuant to FASB 
Interpretation No. 48. This liability represents an estimate of 
tax positions that the Company has taken in its tax returns that 
may ultimately not be sustained upon examination by tax 
authorities. As the ultiraate araount and tiraing of any firture 
cash settlements cannot be predicted with reasonable 
reliability, this estimated liability has been excluded from the 
contractual obligations table. 

O F F -BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

As disclosed in Note Sixteen of Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, the Company has also entered into 
agreeraents to extend credit or provide conditional payments 
pursuant to standby and coramercial letters ofcredit. While the 
outstanding coramitment obligation is not recorded in the 
Company's financial statements, the estimated fair value, 
which is not raaterial to the Company's financial statements, of 
the standby letters of credit is recorded in the Company's 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 
2007. As a result of the Company's off-balance sheet 
arrangeraents for 2007 and 2008, no raaterial revenue, 
expenses, or cash flows were recognized. In addition, the 
Corapany had no other indebtedness, retained interests nor 
were any securities issued in connection with any off-balance 
sheet arrangeraents for 2007 and 2008. Also there were no 
other obligations or liabilities of the Company that were or 
were reasonably likely to become material at December 31, 
2007 or December 31, 2008. 

CAPITAL RESOURCES 

During 2008, Shareholders' Equity decreased $13.6 
million, or 4.6%, from $294.0 mflhon at December 31, 2007, 
to $280.4 million at December 31, 2008. This decrease was 
due to cash dividends declared during the year of $21.9 
million, comraon stock purchases for treasury of $ 11.0 raillion, 
and a $11.2 million decrease in accumulated other 
coraprehensive income that were partially offset by reported 
net income of $28.1 million for 2008. 

The Company repurchased 337,060 shares during 2008 at a 
weighted average price of $32.56. However, there can be no 
assurance that the Company will continue to reacquire its 
coramon shares or to what extent the repurchase program will 
be successfiil. 

The $11.2 million decrease in accumulated other 
coraprehensive incorae was due to a $13.8 million, net oftax, 
unrealized loss on the Company's available for sale investraent 
securities (see Note Three of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements); and a $2.3 million, net of tax, increase in 
underfunded pension obligations (see Note Fourteen of Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements). These decreases were 
partially offset by a $4.9 raillion, net oftax, unrealized gain on 
interest rate floors. 

During 2007, Shareholders' Equity decreased $11.3 
miflion, or 3.7%, from $305.3 miflion at December 31, 2006, 
to $294.0 million at December 31, 2007. This decrease was 
due to common stock purchases for treasury of $48.2 raillion 
and cash dividends declared during the year of $20.7 raillion 
that were partially offset by reported net incorae of $51.0 
million for 2007 and a $6.2 million increase in accumulated 
other comprehensive income. 

Regulatory guidelines require the Corapany to maintain a 
minimum total capital to risk-adjusted assets ratio of 8.00%), 
with at least one-half of capital consisting of tangible common 
shareholders' equity and a minimum Tier I leverage ratio 
of 4.00%). Sirailarly, City National is also required to raaintain 
minimura capital levels as set forth by various regulatory 
agencies. Under capital adequacy guidelines. City National is 
required to raaintain miniraum total capital. Tier I capital, and 
leverage ratios of 8.00%, 4.00%o, and 4.00%, respectivefy. To 
be classified as "well capitalized," City National must maintain 
total capital. Tier I capital, and leverage ratios of 10.00%), 
6.00%, and 5.00%), respectively. 

The Capital Securities issued by City Holding Capital Trust 
III ("Trust III") qualify as regulatory capital for the Corapany 
under guidelines established by the Federal Reserve Board. 
The Company's regulatory capital ratios reraained strong for 
both City Holding and City National as of Deceraber 31, 2008, 
as illustrated in the following table: 

Actual 

City Holding: 
Total 
Tier I Risk-based 
Tier I Leverage 

City National: 
Total 
Tier I Risk-based 
Tier I Leverage 

Minimum 

8.00% 
4.00 
4.00 

8.00% 
4.00 
4.00 

Well-
Capitahzed 

10.00% 
6.00 
5.00 

10.00% 
6.00 
5.00 

Deceraber 31 
2008 

13.43% 
12.25 
9.47 

11.48% 
10.27 
7.97 

2007 

15.11% 
14.12 
10.31 

13.51% 
12.51 
9.08 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 

LEGAL ISSUES 

The Corapany and City National are engaged in various 
legal actions in the ordinary course of business. As these legal 
actions are resolved, the Corapany or Cify National could 
realize positive and/or negative irapact to its financial 
perforraance in the period in which these legal actions are 
ultiraately decided. There can be no assurance that the ultiraate 
resolution of current actions will not materially impact the 
financial statements or that there will be no material actions 
presented in the fiiture. 

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
AND DEVELOPMENTS 

Note One, "Recent Accounting Pronouncements," of Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements discusses recently issued 
new accounting pronouncements and their expected impact on 
the Company's consolidated financial statements. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain 
forward-looking statements that are included pursuant to the 
safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation 
Reform Act of 1995. Such information involves risks and 
uncertainties that could cause the Company's actual resuhs to 
differ from those projected in the forward-looking inforraation. 
Iraportant factors that could cause actual resuhs to differ 
raaterially frora those discussed in such forward-looking 
statements include, but are not limited to those set forth in the 
Corapany's Annual Report on Forra 10-K under "Risk 
Factors" and the following: (1) the Corapany may incur 
additional loan loss provision due to negative credit quality 
trends in the future that may lead to a deterioration of asset 
quality; (2) the Company raay incur increased charge-offs in 
the fiiture; (3) the Company may experience increases in the 
default rates on previously securitized loans that would resuft 

in irapairraent losses or lower the yield on such loans; (4) the 
Corapany raay not continue to benefit from strong recovery 
efforts on previously securitized loans resulting in improved 
yields on these assets; (5) the Corapany could have adverse 
legal actions of a raaterial nature; (6) the Company may face 
competitive loss ofcustomers; (7) the Corapany raay be unable 
to raanage its expense levels; (8) the Company may have 
difficulty retaining key eraployees; (9) changes in the interest 
rate environment raay have results on the Company's 
operations raaterially different frora those anticipated by the 
Corapany's raarket risk raanageraent functions; (10) changes in 
general economic conditions and increased competition could 
adversely affect the Company's operating results; (11) changes 
in other regulations and government policies affecting bank 
holding corapanies and their subsidiaries, including changes in 
raonetary policies, could negatively irapact the Corapany's 
operating results; (12) the Corapany may experience 
difficulties growing loan and deposit balances; (13) the current 
economic environment poses significant challenges for us and 
could adversely affect our financial condition and results of 
operations; (14) continued deterioration in the financial 
condition of the U.S. banking system may impact the 
valuations of investments the Company has raade in the 
securities of other financial institutions resulting in either 
actual losses or other than temporary impairraents on such 
investraents; and (15) the United States govemraent's plan to 
purchase large araounts of illiquid, raortgage-backed and other 
securities from financial institutions may not be effective 
and/or it raay not be available to us. Forward-looking 
stateraents made herein reflect management's expectations as 
of the date such statements are raade. Such information is 
provided to assist stockholders and potential investors in 
understanding current and anticipated financial operations of 
the Company and is included pursuant to the safe harbor 
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995. The Company undertakes no obligation to update any 
forward-looking stateraent to reflect events or circurastances 
that arise after the date such stateraents are raade. 
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REPORT ON MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The management of City Holding Company is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements included in this annual report. The consolidated financial statements of City Holding Company have been 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and, necessarily include sorae araounts that are based on the 
best estiraates and judgments of management. 

The management of Cify Holding Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial 
reporting that is designed to produce reliable financial statements in conforraity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
The system of intemal control over financial reporting is evaluated for effectiveness by management and tested for reliability through a 
program of internal audits with actions taken to correct potential deficiencies as they are identified. Because of inherent limitations in 
any internal control system, no matter how well designed, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, including 
the possibility ofthe circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even an effective intemal control system can provide only 
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, intemal control 
effectiveness raay vary over time. 

Management assessed the effectiveness ofthe Company's intemal control over financial reporting as ofDecember 31, 2008 based 
upon the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Intemal Control -
Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment, management believes that, as ofDecember 31, 2008, the Company's system of 
intemal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. Emst & Young, LLP, the Company's independent 
registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. This 
report appears on page 24. 

March 2, 2009 

Agy^^^ 
Charles R. Hageboeck ^ David L. Bumgamer 
President and ChiefExecutive Officer ChiefFinancial Officer 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING 
FIRM ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Audit Coraraittee ofthe Board ofDirectors and the 
Shareholders of City Holding Company 

We have audited City Holding Company's intemal control over financial reporting as ofDeceraber 31, 2008, based on criteria 
established in Intemal Control - Integrated Fraraework issued by the Coraraittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Comraission (the COSO criteria). City Holding Company's management is responsible for raaintaining effective intemal control over 
financial reporting, and for its assessment ofthe effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying 
Report on Management's Assessraent of Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City 
Holding Company's intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perforra the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over 
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a raaterial weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
intemal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilify 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stateraents for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's intemal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe 
corapany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to perrait preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or tiraely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe corapany's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent liraitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect raisstateraents. Also, 
projections ofany evaluation of effectiveness to fiature periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion. City Holding Corapany maintained, in all material respects, effective intemal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated stateraents of incorae, changes in 
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each ofthe three years in the period ended Deceraber 31, 2008 of City Holding Company and 
our report dated March 2, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

Charleston, West Virginia 
March 2, 2009 

jS/i/***^-^ Xfifu/^LLV 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING 
FIRM ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Audit Committee ofthe Board ofDirectors and the 
Shareholders of City Holding Corapany 

We have audited the accorapanying consolidated balance sheets of City Holding Corapany and subsidiaries as ofDecember 31, 
2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated stateraents of incorae, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended Deceraber 31, 2008. These fmancial stateraents are the responsibility of City Holding Company's 
manageraent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Corapany Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstateraent. An audit includes exaraining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the araounts and disclosures in the 
financial stateraents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates raade by raanageraent, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial stateraents referred to above present fairly, in all raaterial respects, the consolidated financial position 
of City Holding Corapany and subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results oftheir operations and their 
cash flows for each ofthe three years in the period ended Deceraber 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Corapany Accounting Oversight Board (United States), City 
Holding Company's intemal control over financial reporting as of Deceraber 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Intemal Control 
- Integrated Framework issued by the Comraittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Coramission and our report dated 
March 2, 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

^>A/y<J>^'^ ' y o u / y i A ^ L L f - t XfOU/ytA^L 

Charleston, West Virginia 
March 2, 2009 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

(in thousands) 
December 31 

2008 2007 
Assets 
Cash and due from banks 
Interest-bearing deposits in depository institutions 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value 
Investment securities held-to-maturity, at amortized cost (approximate fair value at 

December 31, 2008 and 2007 - $22,050 and $35,198, respectively) 
Total Investinent Securities 

Gross loans 
Allowance for loan losses 

Net Loans 
Bank-owned life insurance 
Premises and equipment 
Accrued interest receivable 
Net deferred tax assets 
Intangible assets 
Other assets 

Total Assets 
Liabilities 
Deposits: 

Noninterest-bearing 
Interest-bearing: 

Demand deposits 
Savings deposits 
Time deposits 

Total Deposits 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term debt 
Other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 
Shareholders' Equity 
Preferred stock, par value $25 per share: 500,000 shares authorized; none issued 
Common stock, parvalue $2.50 per share: 50,000,000 shares authorized; 18,499,282 shares 

issued at December 31, 2008 and 2007, less 2,548,538 and 2,292,357 shares in treasury, 
respectively 

Capita! surplus 
Retained earnings 
Cost of common stock in treasury 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income: 

Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale 
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments 
Underfiinded pension liability 

Total Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income 
Total Shareholders' Equity 
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

55,511 
4,118 

298,530 

420,554 
354,956 
967,090 

2,041,130 
194,463 

19,047 
47,377 

2,302,017 

46,249 
102,895 
230,613 
(88,729) 

(15,628) 
9,287 

(4,258) 

64,726 
9,792 

59,629 
424,214 

29,067 
453,281 

1,812,344 
(22,254) 

1,790,090 
70,400 
60,138 
9,024 

48,462 
57,479 
33,943 

$ 2,582,446 

74,518 
382,098 

34,918 
417,016 

1,767,021 
(17,581) 

1,749,440 
64,467 
54,635 
11,254 
20,633 
58,238 
32,566 

$ 2,482,767 

S 314,231 

397,510 
350,607 
927,733 

1,990,081 
161,916 

4,973 
31,803 

2,188,773 

46,249 
103,390 
224,386 
(80,664) 

(1,783) 
4,390 

(1,974) 
(10,599) 
280,429 

$ 2,582,446 

633 
293,994 

$ 2,482,767 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
C I T Y HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

(in thousands, except per share data) 2008 
Year Ended December 31 

2007 2006 
Interest Income 
Interest and fees on loans 
Interest on investment securities: 

Taxable 
Tax-exempt 

Interest on loans held for sale 
Interest on deposits in depository institutions 
Interest on federal funds sold 

Total Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Interest on deposits 
Interest on short-term borrowings 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total Interest Expense 
Net Interest Income 

Provision for loan losses 
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 

Noninterest Income 
Investment securities (losses) gains 
Service charges 
Insurance commissions 
Trust and investment management fee income 
Bank-owned life insurance 
Gain on sale of retail credit card portfolio and merchant agreements 
VISA IPO Gain 
Other income 

Total Noninterest Income 
Noninterest Expense 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Occupancy and equipment 
Depreciation 
Professional fees 
Postage, delivery, and statement mailings 
Advertising 
Telecommunications 
Bankcard expenses 
Insurance and regulatory 
Office supplies 
Repossessed asset losses (gains), net of expenses 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 
Other expenses 

Total Noninterest Expense 
Income Before Income Taxes 

Income tax expense 
Net Income 

Basic eamings per common share 

Diluted eamings per common share 

Dividends declared per common share 

Average conimon shares outstanding: 
Basic 

Diluted 

See notes to consolidated flnancial statements. 

S 122,127 

45,918 
101,755 

10,423 
91,332 

(38,265) 
45,995 

4,212 
2,239 
2,932 

3,289 
1,534 

21,936 

37,263 
6,871 
4,523 
1,680 
2,549 
2,899 
1,916 
2,689 
1,388 
2,021 

524 
1,208 

10,141 

$ 128,609 

60,276 
97,039 
5,350 

91,689 

45 
44,416 

4,090 
2,042 
2,477 
1,500 

1,566 

56,136 

36,034 
6,366 
4,472 
1,628 
2,588 
3,123 
1,809 
2,354 
1,555 
1,838 
(157) 

9,403 

123,945 

23,852 
1,523 

-
171 
-

147,673 

41,906 
2,629 
1,383 

25,677 
1,689 

-
521 
819 

157,315 

51,826 
6,642 
1,808 

28,418 
1,782 
322 

1,477 
179 

156,123 

44,046 
5,099 
4,579 

53,724 
102,399 

3,801 
98,598 

(1,995) 
42,559 

2,335 
2,140 
2,352 
3,563 

3,249 
54,203 

34,484 
6,481 
4,219 
1,760 
2,832 
3,216 
2,048 
1,964 
1,528 
1,578 

(98) 
1,368 
9,905 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

75,672 
37,596 
9,487 

28,109 

1.74 

1.74 

1.36 

16,118 

16,167 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

71,013 
76,812 
25,786 
51,026 

3.02 

3.01 

1.24 

16,877 

16,935 

$ 

S 
$ 

$ 

71,285 
81,516 
28,329 
53,187 

3.00 

2.99 

1.12 

17,701 

17,762 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 
CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

(in thousands) 

Common 
Stock 
(Par 

Value) 
46,249 

Capital 
Surplus 
104,435 

Retained 
Earnings 

160,747 

53,187 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
(Loss) Income 

(8,012) 

Treasury 
Stock 
(11,278) 

Total 
Shareholders' 

Equity 
292,141 

53,187 

Balances at December 31, 2005 
Comprehensive income: 

Net income 
Other comprehensive gain, net ofdeferred 

income tax benefit of $ 1,655: 
Unrealized gain on securities of $5,645, net 

oftax and reclassification adjustments for 
losses included in net income of $1,995 

Unrealized loss on interest rate floors of 
$350, net oftax 

Decrease in underfiinded pension liability of 
$838, net oftax 

Total comprehensive income 
Cash dividends declared ($1.12 per share) 
Issuance of stock award shares, net 
Exercise of 46,243 stock options 
Excess tax benefit on stock-based compensation 
Purchase of 666,753 common shares for treasury 
Balances at December 31, 2006 
Comprehensive income: 

Cumulative effect of adoption of FIN 48 
Net income 
Other comprehensive gain, net of deferred 

income tax benefit of $10,270: 
Unrealized gain on securities of $1,443, net 

oftax 
Unrealized gain on interest rate floors of 

$7,667, net oftax 
Decrease in underfiinded pension liability of 

$1,160, net oftax 
Total comprehensive income 

Cash dividends declared ($1.24 per share) 
Issuance of stock award shares, net 
Exercise of 7,300 stock options 
Excess tax benefit on stock-based compensation 
Purchase of 1,314,112 common shares for treasury 
Balances at December 31, 2007 

See notes to consolidated fmancial statements. 

(19,721) 
239 

(900) 
269 

46,249 5104,043 194,213 

(125) 
51,026 

2,190 

(210) 

503 

-
-
-
-
-

;5,529) 

-
-

~ 

-

_ 

-
245 

1,698 
-

(24,334) 
$(33,669) ; 

-
-

2,190 

(210) 

503 
55,670 

(19,721) 
484 
798 
269 

(24,334) 
$ 305,307 

(125) 
51,026 

866 

4,600 

(20,728) 
(515) 
(141) 

3 

46,249 $103,390 224,386 633 

866 

4,600 

696 

-
942 
295 

-
,232) 

57,188 
(20,728) 

427 
154 

3 
(48,232) 

,664) $ 293,994 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 
CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

(in thousands) 
Balances at December 31, 2007 
Comprehensive income: 

Net income 
Other comprehensive gain, net ofdeferred 

income tax benefit of $18,519: 
Unrealized loss on securities of $22,828, net 

oftax 
Unrealized gain on interest rate floors of 

$8,074, net oftax 
Increase in underfiinded pension liability of 

$3,766, net oftax 
Total comprehensive income 

Cash dividends declared ($1.36 per share) 
Issuance ofstock award shares, net 
Exercise of 66,454 stock options 
Excess tax benefit on stock-based compensation 
Purchase of 337,060 conimon shares for treasury 
Balances at December 31, 2008 

Common 
Stock 
(Par 

Value) 
$ 46,249 

-

-

-

-

-
-
-
-
-

S 46,249 

Capital 
Surplus 
$103,390 

-

-

-

-

-
(12) 

(749) 
266 

-

$102,895 

Retained 
Earnings 
$ 224,386 

28,109 

-

-

-

(21,882) 
-
-
-
-

$ 230,613 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
(Loss) Income 

$ 633 

-

(13,845) 

4,897 

(2,284) 

-
-
-
-
-

$ (10,599) 

Treasury 
Stock 

$(80,664) 

-

-

-

-

-
491 

2,418 
-

(10,974) 
$(88,729) 

Total 
Shareholders' 

$ 

S 

Equity 
293,994 

28,109 

(13,845) 

4,897 

(2,284) 
16,877 

(21,882) 
479 

1,669 
266 

(10,974) 
280,429 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

(in thousands) 2008 
Year Ended December 31 

2007 2006 

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Amortization and accretion 
Depreciation ofpremises and equipment 
Provision for loan losses 
Loss on early extinguishments of debt 
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense 
Net periodic pension cost 
Increase in value of bank-owned life insurance 
Proceeds from bank-owned life insurance 
Gain from sale of retail credit card portfolio and merchant agreements 
Loss on sale ofpremises and equipment 
Realized investment securities losses (gains) 
Decrease in accrued interest receivable 
Increase in other assets 
Increase in other liabilities 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Investing Activities 
Proceeds from maturities and calls ofsecurities held to maturity 
Proceeds from sale of money market and mutual fund available-for-sale securities 
Purchases of money market and mutual fiind available-for-sale securities 
Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale 
Proceeds from maturities and calls ofsecurities available-for-sale 
Purchases ofsecurities available-for-sale 
Net increase in loans 
Sales ofpremises and equipment 
Purchases ofpremises and equipment 
Investment in bank owned life insurance 
Proceeds from sale of retail credit card portfolio and merchant agreements 
Proceeds from sale of VISA stock 
Proceeds from sale of derivative instruments 

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activities 

Financing Activities 
Net decrease in noninterest-bearing deposits 
Net increase in interest-bearing deposits 
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Redemption of trust preferred securities 
Purchases of treasury stock 
Proceeds from stock options exercises 
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements 
Dividends paid 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 
(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

See notes to consolidated fmancial statements. 

$ 28,109 $ 51,026 $ 53,187 

(1,195) 
4,523 
10,423 
1,208 

(14,449) 
50 

(2,933) 
-
-

125 
38,265 
2,230 

(17,712) 
5,916 

54,560 

1,468 
972,269 
(972,375) 

3,019 
56,765 

(159,246) 
(47,445) 

340 
(10,491) 
(3,000) 

-
2,334 

20,454 
(135,908) 

(15,701) 
66,750 
47,106 
16,495 
(100) 

(17,569) 
(10,974) 
1,669 
266 

(21,483) 
66,459 
(14,889) 
74,518 

S 59,629 

(2,309) 
4,472 
5,350 

-
(1,176) 
236 

(2,477) 
205 

(1,500) 
-

(45) 
1,083 
(4,775) 
258 

50,348 

12,458 
1,015,160 
(969,052) 

1,819 
84,431 
(41,261) 
(88,566) 

15 
(14,433) 
(7,000) 
1,650 

-
-

(4,779) 

(6,807) 
11,671 
(17,524) 

-
(163) 
-

(48,232) 
154 
3 

(20,601) 

(81,499) 
(35,930) 
110,448 

$ 74,518 

(2,596) 
4,219 
3,801 
1,368 
2,516 
246 

(2,352) 
126 

(3,563) 
15 

1,995 
797 

(2,690) 
2,078 
59,147 

7,667 
1,092,400 
(1,093,411) 

57,526 
79,138 
(57,650) 
(75,475) 

-
(6,381) 

-
13,920 

-
-

17,734 

(55,038) 
111,932 
(38,406) 

-
(15,575) 
(13,002) 
(24,334) 

798 
269 

(19,350) 
(52,706) 
24,175 
86,273 

$ 110,448 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTE ONE 
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING 

AND REPORTING POLICIES 

Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting 
Policies: The accounting and reporting policies of Cify 
Holding Corapany and its subsidiaries (the "Company") 
conform with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles 
and require manageraent to make estiraates and develop 
assuraptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
stateraents and related footnotes. Actual results could differ 
frora management's estimates. The following is a suramary of 
the more significant policies. 

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial 
statements include the accounts of City Holding Company and 
its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

The Company determines whether it has a controlling 
financial interest in an entify by first evaluating whether the 
entify is a voting interest entity or a variable interest entity in 
conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. Voting interest entities are entities in which the 
total equity investment at risk is sufficient to enable the entity 
to finance itself independently and provides the equity holders 
with the obligation to absorb losses, the right to receive 
residual retums and the right to make decisions about the 
entity's activities. The Corapany consolidates voting interest 
entities in which it has all, or at least a raajority of, the voting 
interest. As defined in applicable accounting standards, 
variable interest entities (VIEs) are entities that lack one or 
more of the characteristics of a voting interest entify. A 
controlling financial interest in an entify is present when an 
enterprise has a variable interest, or a corabination of variable 
interests, that will absorb a raajority of the entity's expected 
losses, receive a majorify of the entify's expected residual 
returns, or both. The enterprise with a controlling financial 
interest, known as the primary beneficiary, consolidates the 
VIE. The Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Cify Holding 
Capital Tmst III, is a VIE for which the Company is not the 
primary beneficiary. Accordingly, the accounts of this entity 
are not included in the Company's consolidated financial 
statements. 

Description of Principal Markets and Services: The 
Corapany is a bank holding company headquartered in 
Charleston, West Virginia, and conducts its principal activities 
through its wholly-owned subsidiary. City National Bank of 
West Virginia ("Cify National"). Cify National is a retail and 
consumer-oriented coraraunity bank with 69 offices in West 
Virginia, Kentucky, and Ohio. Principal activities include 

providing deposit, credit, trust and investment management, 
and insurance related products and services. The Company 
conducts its business activities through one reportable business 
segment - community banking. 

Cash and Due from Banks: The Corapany considers cash, 
due frora banks, and interest-bearing federal deposits in 
depository institutions as cash and cash equivalents. 

Securities: Manageraent determines the appropriate 
classification of securities at the time of purchase. If 
management has the intent and the Company has the ability at 
the time of purchase to hold debt securities to maturity, they 
are classified as investraent securities held-to-raaturity and are 
stated at amortized cost, adjusted for araortization of 
premiuras and accretion ofdiscounts. Debt securities for which 
the Company does not have the intent or ability to hold to 
raaturify are classified as investment securities available-for-
sale along with the Company's investment in equity securities. 
Securities available-for-sale are carried at fair value, with the 
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in 
comprehensive income. Securities classified as available-for-
sale include securities that management intends to use as part 
of its asset/liabilify management strategy and that may be sold 
in response to changes in interest rates, resultant prepayment 
risk, and other factors. On a quarterly basis, the Company 
performs a review of investment securities to deterraine if any 
unrealized losses are other than temporarily impaired. In 
estiraating other-than-teraporary irapairraent losses, 
raanageraent considers the following, among other things, in 
its determination of the nature of the unrealized losses, (i) the 
length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been 
less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term 
prospects of the issuer, and (iii) the intent and ability of the 
Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of 
tirae sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair 
value. 

The specific identification method is used to deterraine the 
cost basis of securities sold. 

Loans: Loans, excluding previously securitized loans, 
which are discussed separately below, are reported at the 
principal araount outstanding, net of uneamed incorae. 
Portfolio loans include those for which management has the 
intent and Cify has the ability to hold for the foreseeable 
future, or until maturify or payoff The foreseeable future is 
based upon manageraent's judgement of curtent business 
strategies and market conditions, the type of loan, asset/ 
liability manageraent, and liquidity. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Interest incorae on loans is accmed and credited to 
operations based upon the principal araount outstanding, using 
raethods that generally result in level rates of retum. Loan 
origination fees, and certain direct costs, are deferred and 
amortized as an adjustment to the yield over the terra of the 
loan. The accmal of interest incorae generally is discontinued 
when a loan becomes 90 days past due as to principal or 
interest. Other indicators considered for placing a loan on non­
accmal status include the borrower's involvement in 
bankruptcies, foreclosures, repossessions, litigation and any 
other situation resulting in doubt as to whether fiill collection 
of contractual principal and interest is attainable. When 
interest accruals are discontinued, unpaid interest recognized 
in incorae in the current year is reversed, and interest accmed 
in prior years is charged to the allowance for loan losses. 
Manageraent may elect to continue the accrual of interest when 
the estiraated net realizable value of collateral exceeds the 
principal balance and related accraed interest, and the loan is 
in process of collection. 

Interest income during the period the loan is non-
performing is recorded on a cash basis after recovery of 
principal is reasonably assured. Cash payments received on 
nonperforraing loans are typically applied directly against the 
outstanding principal balance until the loan is fully repaid. 
Generally, loans are restored to accrual status when the 
obligation is brought current, has perforraed in accordance 
with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time, and 
the ultimate collectability ofthe total contractual principal and 
interest is no longer in doubt. 

Residential and horae equity loans are generally subject to 
charge-off when the loan becoraes 120 days past due, 
depending on the estiraated fair value ofthe collateral less cost 
to dispose, versus the outstanding loan balance. Unsecured 
comraercial loans are generally charged off when the loan 
becomes 120 days past due. Secured commercial loans are 
generally evaluated for charge-off when the loan becomes 180 
days past due. Closed-end consumer loans are generally 
charged off when the loan becomes 120 days past due and 
open-end consumer loans are generally charged off when the 
loan becoraes 180 days past due. 

Previously Securitized Loans: Amounts reported in Note 
Four of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as 
"previously securitized loans" represent the carrying value of 
loans beneficially owned by the Corapany as a result of having 
ftilly redeemed the obligations owed to investors ("notes") in 
certain ofthe Company's securitization transactions. The loans 
were recorded at the lower of fair value or their carrying 
values, which was the carrying value of the related retained 
interest asset underlying the securitization plus amounts 
remitted by the Company to the noteholders to redeem the 

notes. Because the carrying value of the retained interests 
incorporated assumptions with regard to expected prepayment 
and default rates on the loans and also considered the expected 
tiraing and amount of cash flows to be received by the 
Company, the carrying value of the retained interests and the 
carrying value ofthe loans was less than the actual outstanding 
balance ofthe loans. 

The Company is accounting for the difference between the 
carrying value and the expected cash flows from these loans as 
an adjustment of the yield on the loans over their remaining 
lives. The discount is accreted to income over the period 
during which payraents are probable of collection and are 
reasonably estimable. 

The excess of expected cash flows over contractual cash 
flows is recognized prospectively through an adjustraent to the 
yield over the reraaining lives ofthe loans. If upon evaluation 
of estiraated collections and collections to date, the estiraated 
total amount of collections is reduced below the original value 
of the loans, the loans are considered impaired for fiirther 
evaluation. 

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan 
losses is maintained at a level that represents raanageraent's 
best estimate of probable losses in the loan portfolio. 
Management's determination ofthe adequacy ofthe allowance 
for loan losses is based upon an evaluation of individual 
credits in the loan portfolio, historical loan loss experience, 
current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. This 
deterraination is inherently subjective, as it requires raaterial 
estiraates including the araounts and tiraing of future cash 
flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be 
susceptible to significant change. These evaluations are 
conducted at least quarterly and more frequently if deemed 
necessary. The allowance for loan losses related to loans 
considered to be impaired is generally evaluated based on the 
discounted cash flows using the irapaired loan's initial 
effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral for 
certain collateral dependent loans. Loan losses are charged 
against the allowance and recoveries of araounts previously 
charged are credited to the allowance. A provision for loan 
losses is charged to operations based on raanageraent's 
periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance after 
considering factors noted above, among others. 

In evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for loan losses, 
the Company stratifies the loan portfolio into seven raajor 
groupings, including commercial real estate, other commercial, 
residential real estate, horae equity, and others. Historical loss 
experience, as adjusted, is applied to the then outstanding 
balance of loans in each classification to estimate probable 
losses inherent in each segment ofthe portfolio. Historical loss 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

experience is adjusted using a systematic weighted probability 
of potential risk factors that could result in actual losses 
deviating from prior loss experience. Risk factors considered 
by the Company in completing this analysis include: (1) 
uneraployment and economic trends in the Company's 
markets, (2) concentrations of credit, if any, among any 
industries, (3) trends in loan growth, loan raix, delinquencies, 
losses or credit irapairment, (4) adherence to lending policies 
and others. Each risk factor is designated as low, 
moderate/increasing, or high based on the Corapany's 
assessraent ofthe risk to loss associated with each factor. Each 
risk factor is then weighted to consider probabilify of 
occurrence. 

Additionally, all loans within the portfolio are subject to 
intemal risk grading. Risk grades are generally assigned by the 
primary lending officer and are periodically evaluated by the 
Company's intemal loan review process. Based on an 
individual loan's risk grade, estimated loss percentages are 
applied to the outstanding balance of the loan to determine the 
amount of probable loss. 

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
coraputed primarily by the straight-line raethod over the 
estiraated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of leasehold 
iraproveraents is coraputed using the straight-line raethod over 
the lesser of the terra of the respective lease or the estiraated 
useful life of the respective asset. Maintenance and repairs are 
charged to expense as incurred, while iraprovements that 
extend the useful life of premises and equipment are 
capitalized and depreciated over the estimated reraaining life 
ofthe asset. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill is the 
excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of 
tangible and intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is not 
amortized. Intangible assets represent purchased assets that 
also lack physical substance, but can be separately 
distinguished from goodwill because of contractual or other 
legal rights or because the asset is capable of being sold or 
exchanged either on its own or in combination with a related 
contract, asset or liability. Intangible assets with determinable 
usefiil lives, such as core deposits, are amortized over their 
estimated usefiil lives. 

The Company performs an annual review for impairment in 
the recorded value of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible 
assets. Goodwill is tested for irapairraent between the annual 
tests if an event occurs or circurastances change that more than 
likely reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its 
carrying value. An indefmfte-lived intangible asset is tested for 
impairment between the annual tests if an event occurs or 
circumstances change indicating that the asset might be 
irapaired. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Corapany enters 
into derivative transactions principally to protect against the 
risk of adverse price or interest rate moveraents on the value of 
certain assets and liabilities and on fiiture cash flows. Afl 
derivative instruments are carried at fair value on the balance 
sheet. The change in the fair value of the hedged item related 
to the risk being hedged is recognized in eamings in the same 
period and in the same income stateraent caption as the change 
in the fair value of the derivative. The Corapany formally 
documents all relationships between hedging instraments and 
hedged iteras, as well as its risk manageraent objective and 
strategy for undertaking each hedge transaction. 

Derivative instraraents designated in a hedge relationship 
to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset, 
liability, or firm coramitment attributable to a particular risk, 
such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. The 
Company has not entered into any fair value hedges as of 
Deceraber 31, 2008. Derivative instmments designated in a 
hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to variability in 
expected fiiture cash flows, or other types of forecasted 
transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. 

Cash flow hedges are accounted for by recording the fair 
value of the derivative instraraent on the balance sheet as 
either a freestanding asset or liability, with a cortesponding 
offset recorded in other coraprehensive income within 
shareholders' equity, net of incorae taxes. Amounts are 
reclassifled frora other comprehensive income to the income 
statement in the period or periods the hedged forecasted 
transaction affects eamings. 

For the Company's cash flow hedges, derivative gains and 
losses not effective in hedging the change in fair value or 
expected cash flows of the hedged item are recognized 
immediately in the income statement. At the hedge's inception 
and at least quarterly thereafter, a forraal assessment is 
performed to determine whether changes in the fair values or 
cash flows of the derivative instmraents have been highly 
effective in offsetting changes in the fair values or cash flows 
ofthe hedged items and whether they are expected to be highly 
effective in the fiiture. If it is determined a derivative 
instrament has not been or will not continue to be highly 
effective as a hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued. 

Income Taxes: The consolidated provision for income 
taxes is based upon reported income and expense. Deferted 
income taxes are provided for temporary differences between 
financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, 
computed using enacted tax rates. The Company files a 
consolidated incorae tax retum. The respective subsidiaries 
generally provide for incorae taxes on a separate return basis 
and rerait araounts determined to be currently payable to the 
Parent Company. 
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The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to 
examinations and challenges from federal and state taxing 
authorities regarding positions taken in retums. Uncertain tax 
positions are initially recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements when it is more likely than not the position will be 
sustained upon examination. These positions are initially and 
subsequently measured as the largest amount oftax benefit that 
is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate 
settlement with the taxing authority and assuming full 
knowledge of the position and all relevant facts by the taxing 
authority. 

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are expensed as 
incurred. 

Stock-Based Compensation: Compensation expense 
related to stock options and restricted stock awards issued to 
employees is based upon the fair value ofthe award at the date 
of grant. The fair value of stock options is estimated utilizing 
a Black Scholes pricing model, while the fair value of 
restricted stock awards is based upon the stock price at the 
date of grant. Compensation expense is recognized on a 
straight line basis over the vesting period for options and the 
respective period for stock awards. 

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Common Share: Basic 
eamings per share is computed by dividing net income by the 
weighted-average number of shares of comraon stock 
outstanding. Diluted eamings per share is computed by 
dividing net income by the weighted-average number of shares 
outstanding increased by the number of shares of common 
stock which would be issued assuming the exercise of stock 
options and other comraon stock equivalents. The incremental 
shares related to stock options were 49,000, 58,000, and 
61,000 in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: In Deceraber 
2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 141 (revised 2007) 
("SFAS No. 141R"), "Business Corabinations." SFAS No. 
141R will significantly change how the acquisition method 
will be appUed to business combinations. SFAS No. 141R 
requires an acquirer, upon initially obtaining control ofanother 
entity, to recognize the assets, liabilities and any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value as of the 
acquisition date. Contingent consideration is required to be 
recognized and raeasured at fair value on the date of 
acquisition rather than at a later date when the amount of that 
consideration raay be determinable beyond a reasonable doubt. 
This fair value approach replaces the cost-allocation process 
required under SFAS No. 141 whereby the cost of an 

acquisition was allocated to the individual assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair value. SFAS 
No. 141R requires acquirers to expense acquisition-related 
costs as incurted rather than allocating such costs to the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed, as was previously the case 
under SFAS No. 141. Under SFAS No. 141R, the 
requirements of SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs 
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities," would have to be 
met in order to accme for a restructuring plan in purchase 
accounting. Pre-acquisition contingencies are to be recognized 
at fair value, unless it is a non-contractual contingency that is 
not likely to materialize, in which case, nothing should be 
recognized in purchase accounting and, instead, that 
contingency would be subject to the probable and estimable 
recognition criteria of SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for 
Contingencies." Reversals of deferred income tax valuation 
allowances and income tax contingencies will be recognized in 
eamings subsequent to the measurement period. The 
allowance for loan losses of an acquiree will not be permitted 
to be recognized by the acquirer. Additionally, SFAS 
No. 14](R) wifl require new and modified disclosures 
surtounding subsequent changes to acquisition-related 
contingencies, contingent consideration, noncontrolling 
interests, acquisition-related transaction costs, fair values and 
cash flows not expected to be collected for acquired loans, and 
an enhanced goodwill roUforward. The Corapany will be 
required to prospectively apply SFAS No. 141R to aU business 
combinations completed on or after January I, 2009. Early 
adoption is not perraitted. The Corapany is currently 
evaluating SFAS No. 141R and has not deterrained the irapact 
it will have on our financial stateraents. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 
("SFAS No. 160"), "Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated 
Financial Stateraents, an araendment of ARB Statement No. 
51." SFAS No. 160 clarifies that a non-controlling interest in a 
subsidiary, which is sometimes referred to as minority interest 
will be recharacterized as a "noncontrolling interests" and 
should be reported as a component of equify. Among other 
requireraents, SFAS No. 160 requires consolidated net income 
to be reported at araounts that include the araounts attributable 
to both the parent and the non-controlling interest. It also 
requires disclosure, on the face of the consolidated incorae 
statement, of the amounts of consolidated net income 
attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest. 
SFAS No. 160 is effective for the Corapany on January 1, 
2009 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the 
Company's financial stateraents. 
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In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, ("SFAS 
No. 161"),"Disclosures About Derivative Instmraents and 
Hedging Activities, an Amendment of FASB Statement 
No. 133." SFAS No. 161 apphes to all derivative instraments 
and related hedged iteras accounted for under SFAS No. 133. 
SFASNo. 161 amends SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," to araend and 
expand the disclosure requirements of SFASNo. 133 to 
provide greater transparency about (i) how and why an entify 
uses derivative instraments, (ii) how derivative instruments 
and related hedge items are accounted for under SFASNo. 
133 and its related interpretations, and (iii) how derivative 
instmments and related hedged items affect an entity's 
financial position, resuhs of operations and cash flows. To 
meet those objectives, SFAS No. 161 requires qualitative 
disclosures about objectives and strategies for using 
derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts 
of gains and losses on derivative instraments and disclosures 
about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative 
agreements. SFAS No. 161 is effective for the Company on 
January 1, 2009 and is not expected to have a significant 
impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162 ("SFAS No. 
162"), "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles". SFAS No. 162 identifies the sources of account 
principles and the fraraework for selecting the principles to be 
used in the preparation of financial statements of 
nongovemmental entities that are presented in conforraity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the 
United States. SFAS No. 162 is effective 60 days following 
the SEC approval of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board araendraents to AU Section 411, "The 
Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles." Adoption of SFAS 162 will 
not be a change in the Company's curtent accounting 
practices; therefore, it will not have a materia! impact on the 
Company's consolidated financial condition or resuUs of 
operations. 

FASB Staff Position EITF 03-6-1, In June 2008, the FASB 
issued FSP EITF 03-6-1 ("FSP EITF 03-6-1"), "Determining 
Whether Instraments Granted in Share-Based Payraent 
Transactions are Participating Securities". FSP EITF 03-6-1 
clarifies whether instmments, such as restricted stock, granted 
in share-based payraents are participating securities prior to 
vesting. Such participating securities must be included in the 
coraputation of eamings per share under the two-class raethod 
as described in SFAS No. 128, "Eamings per Share." FSP 
EITF 03-6-1 requires companies to treat unvested share-based 
payment awards that have non-forfeitable rights to dividend or 
dividend equivalents as a separate class of securities in 
calculating eamings per share. FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective 
for financial stateraents issued for fiscal years and interira 
periods begiiming after Deceraber 15, 2008, and requires a 
company to retrospectively adjust its earnings per share data. 
Early adoption is not permitted. The Company does not expect 
that the adoption of FSP EITF 03-6-1 will have a material 
effect on consolidated results of operations or eamings per 
share. 

Statements of Cash Flows: Cash paid for interest, 
including interest paid on long-term debt and trast preferred 
securities, was $47.4 raillion, $60.3 million, and $53.5 miflion 
in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively During 2008, 2007 and 
2006, the Corapany paid $26.7 raiUion, $25.5 raillion, and 
$22.9 million, respectively, for income taxes. 

NOTE TWO 
RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM 

BANKS 

Cify National is required to maintain an average reserve 
balance with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond to 
compensate for services provided by the Federal Reserve and 
to meet statutory required reserves for demand deposits. The 
average amount of the reserve balance for the year ended 
December 31, 2008 was approximately $14.4 miUion. 
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NOTE THREE 
INVESTMENTS 

The aggregate carrying and approximate raarket values of 
securities follow. Fair values are based on quoted market 
prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not 
available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of 
comparable financial instmments. 

December 31, 2008 

(in thousands) 

Securities available-for-sale: 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Other debt securities 

Total Debt Securities 
Equity securities and 

investment tunds 
Total Securities 

Available-for-Sale 

Securities held-to-maturity: 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions 
Other debt securities 

Total Securities Held-
to-Maturity 

Amortized 
Cost 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

41,960 
287,233 

96,406 

425,599 

24,372 

449,971 

2,834 
26,233 

29,067 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

% 

$ 

S 

$ 

196 
3,986 

57 

4,239 

4,239 

28 

28 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

$ (735) 
(2,886) 

(22,829) 

(26,450) 

(3,546) 

$ (29,996) 

S 
(7,045) 

$ (7,045) 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

$ 

$ 

S 

$ 

41,421 
288,333 
73,634 

403,388 

20,826 

424,214 

2,862 
19,188 

22,050 

(in thousands) 

Securities available-for-sale: 
U.S. Treasury securities and 

obligations of U.S. govem­
ment corporations and 
agencies 

Obligations of states and 
political subdivisions 

Mortgage-backed securities 
Other debt securities 

Total Debt Securities 
Equity securities and 

investment funds 

Total Securities 
Available-for-Sale 

Securities held-to-maturity: 
Obligations of states and 

political subdivisions 
Other debt securities 

Total Securities Held-
to-Maturity 

Amortized 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Cost 

248 

39,433 
260,249 

71,194 

371,124 

13,934 

385,058 

4,300 
30,618 

34,918 

Decembe 

Gross 
Unrealized 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Gains 

2 

256 
795 
561 

1,614 

11 

1,625 

36 
673 

709 

r31 ,2007 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(205) 
(1,708) 
(2,414) 

(4,327) 

(258) 

(4,585) 

(429) 

(429) 

Estimated 

$ 

$ 

S 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

250 

39,484 
259,336 

69,341 
368,411 

13,687 

382,098 

4,336 
30,862 

35,198 

Certain investment securities owned by the Company were 
in an unrealized loss position (i.e., amortized cost basis 
exceeded the estimated fair value of the securities) as of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007. The foUowing table shows the 
gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company's 
investments aggregated by investraent category and length of 
tirae that individual securities have been in a continuous 
unrealized loss position at December 31, 2008 and 2007. 
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(in thousands) 

Securities available-for-sale: 
Obligations of states and political 

subdivisions 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Other debt securities 
Equity securities and investment funds 

Total 

Securities held-to-maturity: 
Other debt securities 

(in thousands) 

Securities available-for-sale: 
Obligations of states and political 

subdivisions 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Other debt securities 
Equity securities and investment funds 

Total 

Securities held-to-maturity: 
Other debt securities 

Less Tlian Twelve Months 
Estimated Fair 

S 

$ 

$ 

Value 

17,068 
43,633 
39,601 

5,305 
105,607 

12,408 

Unrealized Loss 

$ 

S 

s 

729 
2,886 

10,493 
3,010 

17,118 

5,282 

Less Than Twelve Months 
Estimated Fair 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Value 

6,768 
27,410 
44,817 

1,524 
80,519 

8,127 

Unrealized Loss 

$ 

$ 

$ 

90 
83 

2,157 
225 

2,555 

269 

December 31. ,2008 
Twelve Months or Greater 

Estimated Fair 

$ 

S 

S 

Value 

187 
-

8,122 
2,124 

10,433 

1,700 

Unrealized Loss 

S 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 

6 
-

12,336 
536 

12,878 

1,763 

2007 
Twelve Months or Greater 

Estimated Fair 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Value 

12,585 
144,680 

4,919 
1,467 

163,651 

2,050 

Unrealized Loss 

$ 

$ 

$ 

115 
1,625 

257 
33 

2,030 

160 

Total 
Estimated Fair 

$ 

$ 

S 

Value 

17,255 
43,633 
47,723 

7,429 
116,040 

14,108 

Unrealized Loss 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Estimated Fair 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Value 

19,353 
172,090 
49,736 

2,991 
244,170 

10,177 

735 
2,886 

22,829 
3,546 

29,996 

7,045 

Unrealized Loss 

$ 

$ 

$ 

205 
1,708 
2,414 

258 
4,585 

429 

During 2008, the Company recorded $38.3 million ofother 
than teraporary non-cash investraent irapairraent losses, or 
$23.2 raillion on an after-tax basis. The charges deeraed to be 
other than temporary were related to agency preferteds ($21.1 
million) with remaining book value of $1.6 million at 
Deceraber 31, 2008; pooled bank tmst preferreds ($14.2 
million) with remaining book value of $10.9 million at 
December 31, 2008; income notes ($2.0 miUion) with no 
remaining book value at December 31, 2008; and corporate 
debt securities ($1.0 million) with remaining book value of 
$24.6 miflion at Deceraber 31, 2008. The irapairraent charges 
for the agency preferred securities were due to the actions of 
the federal governraent to place Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae 
into conservatorship and the suspension of dividends on such 
preferred securities. The impairment charges related to the 
pooled bank tmst preferred securities and incorae notes were 
based on the Corapany's quarterly reviews of its investment 
securities for indications of losses considered to be other than 
temporary. Based on raanageraent's assessraent of the 
seeurities the Corapany owns, the seniority position of the 
securities within the pools, the level of defauhs and deferred 
payments within the pools, and a review of the financial 
strength of the banks within the respective pools, raanageraent 

concluded that irapairment charges of $14.2 raillion and $2.0 
raillion on the pooled bank trast preferred securities and the 
incorae notes, respectively, were necessary for the year ended 
December 31, 2008. The $1.0 million irapairment charge for 
corporate debt securities was due to Lehraan Brothers 
Holdings bankraptcy filing. The Corapany had acquired this 
securify as the result ofan acquisition of a bank in 2005. 

Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale securities below their cost that are deeraed to be other 
than teraporary would be reflected in eamings as realized 
losses. In estiraating other-than-teraporary impairment losses, 
management considers, among other things, (i) the length of 
time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than 
cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the 
issuer, and (iii) the intent and abilify of the Company to retain 
its investraent in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to 
allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. 

Manageraent has the ability and intent to hold the securities 
classified as held to raaturity until they raature, at which time 
the Company will receive frill value for the securities. 
Furtherraore, as of December 31, 2008, management also had 
the ability and intent to hold the securities classified as 
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available for sale for a period of time sufficient for a recovery 
of cost. The unrealized losses on debt securities are primarily 
the result of interest rate changes, credit spread widening on 
agency-issued mortgage related securities, general financial 
market uncertainty and unprecedented market volatility. These 
conditions will not prohibit the Company from receiving its 
contractual principal and interest payments on its debt 
securities. The fair value is expected to recover as the 
securities approach their maturity date or repricing date. As of 
December 31, 2008, management believes the unrealized 
losses detailed in the table above are teraporary and no 
irapairraent loss has been recognized in the Company's 
consolidated income statement. Should the impairment of any 
ofthese securities become other-than-temporary, the cost basis 
of the investment will be reduced and the resulting loss 
recognized in net income in the period the other-than-
teraporary impairment is identified. 

The araortized cost and estimated fair value of debt 
securities at Deceraber 31, 2008, by contractual maturity, are 
shown in the following table. Expected maturities will differ 
from contractual maturities because the issuers ofthe securities 
raay have the right to prepay obligations without prepayraent 
penalties. Mortgage-backed securities have been allocated to 
their respective maturity groupings based on their contractual 
maturity. 

(in thousands) 

Securities Available-for-Sale 
Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

Cost 

750 
14,946 
81,454 

328,449 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value 

$ 750 
14,684 
80,761 

307,193 

Securities Held-to-Maturify 
Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

$ 

$ 

$ 

425,599 

120 
2,714 

-
26,233 
29,067 

$ 

$ 

$ 

403,388 

120 
2,742 

-
19,188 
22,050 

Gross gains and gross losses realized by the Company from 
investment security transactions are summarized in the table 
below: 

2006 (in thousands) 2008 2007 

Gross realized gains S 5 $ 47 
Gross realized losses (38,270) (2)_ 
hivestment security gains (losses) $(38,265) $ 45 $ (1,995) 

154 
(2,149) 

The cartying value of securities pledged to secure public 
deposits and for other purposes as required or permitted by 
law approximated $223.3 miUion and $192.1 mfllion at 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

NOTE FOUR 
LOANS 

The following summarizes the Company's major 
classifications for loans: 

(in thousands) 
Residential real estate -
mortgage 

Home equity 
Commercial, fmancial, 
agriculture 

Loans to Depository 
Institutions 

Installment loans to 
individuals 

Previously securitized 
loans 

Gross Loans 
Allowance for loan loss 

Net Loans 

and 

ies 

2008 
$ 611,962 

384,320 

768,255 

-

43,585 

4,222 
1,812,344 

(22,254) 
$ 1,790,090 

2007 
$ 602,057 

341,818 

707,987 

60,000 

48,267 

6,892 
1,767,021 

(17,581) 
$ 1,749,440 

The Corapany's comraercial and residential real estate 
constraction loans are priraarily secured by real estate within 
the Corapany's principal markets. These loans were originated 
under the Corapany's loan policy, which is focused on the risk 
characteristics of the loan portfolio, including constraction 
loans. Adequate consideration has been given to these loans in 
establishing the Corapany's allowance for loan losses. 

NOTE FIVE 
ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

A summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses 
follows: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 

Balance at January 1 
Reduction ofallowance for loans sold 
Provision for possible loan losses 
Charge-offs 
Recoveries 
Balance at December 31 

$ 17,581 

-
10,423 
(8,048) 
2,298 

$ 22,254 

$ 

_$_ 

15,405 $ 16,790 
(1,368) 

5,350 3,801 
(5,652) (6,935) 
2,478 3,117 

17,581 $ 15,405 
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The recorded investment in loans on nonaccraal status and 
loans past due 90 days or raore and still accming interest is 
included in the following table: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 

Nonaccrual loans 
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more 
Previously securitized loans past due 90 days or 

more 
Total 

Information pertaining to impaired loans is included in the 
following table: 

S 25,224 
623 

10 
$ 25,857 

$ 16,437 
314 

76 
$ 16,827 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 

S 25,847 
10 

$ 25,857 

$ 6,964 

$ 16,751 
76 

$ 16,827 

$ 4,139 

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 
Impaired loans with no valuation allowance 
Total impaired loans 

Allowance for loan losses allocated to impaired 
loans 

The average recorded investraent in impaired loans during 
2008, 2007, and 2006 was $21.1 miUion, $15.8 miUion, and 
$3.8 million, respectively. The Company recognized 
approximately $1.2 million, $0.8 miflion, and $0.1 raillion of 
interest incorae received in cash on non-accrual and irapaired 
loans in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Approxiraately 
$0.3 raillion, $0.4 raUUon and $0.2 raiflion of interest income 
would have been recognized during 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively, if such loans had been current in accordance with 
their original terms. There were no commitments to provide 
additional fiinds on non-accmal, impaired, or other potential 
problem loans at December 31, 2008 and 2007. 

NOTE SIX 
PREVIOUSLY SECURITIZED LOANS 

Between 1997 and 1999, the Company completed six 
securitization transactions involving approxiraately $759.8 
million of fixed rate, junior lien raortgage loans. As described 
in Note One, the Company retained a financial interest in each 
of the securitizations until 2004. Principal amounts owed to 

investors were evidenced by securities ("Notes"). During 
2003 and 2004, the Company exercised its early rederaption 
options on each of those securitizations. Once the Notes were 
redeemed, the Company became the beneficial owner of the 
raortgage loans and recorded the loans as assets of the 
Company within the loan portfolio. The table below 
summarizes inforraation regarding delinquencies, net credit 
losses, and outstanding collateral balances of previously 
securitized loans for the dates presented: 

(in thousands) 

Total principal amount of loans 
outstanding 

Discount 
Net book value 

Principal amount of loans 
between 30 and 89 days past 
due 

Principal amount ofloans 
between 90 and 119 days past 
due 

Net credit (recoveries) during the 
year 

S 

$ 

s 

2008 

18,955 
(14,733) 

4,222 

999 

10 

(351) 

December 31 

$ 

s 

s 

2007 

24,062 
(17,170) 

6,892 

1,099 

76 

(2,938) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2006 

33,334 
(17,737) 
15,597 

1,062 

48 

(4,124) 

Because the book value of the mortgage loans incorporates 
assumptions for expected eash flows considering prepayment 
and default rates, the carrying value of the loans is generally 
less than the actual contractual outstanding balance of the 
mortgage loans. As of Deceraber 31, 2008 and 2007, the 
Company reported a book value of previously securitized 
loans of $4.2 raillion and $6.9 raillion, respectively, while the 
actual outstanding balance of previously securitized loans at 
Deceraber 31, 2008 and 2007 was $19.0 mflhon and $24.1 
million, respectively. The difference ("the discounf') between 
the book value and actual outstanding balance of previously 
securitized loans is accreted into interest income over the life 
ofthe loans. Ifthe discounted present value of estiraated ftiture 
cash flows frora previously securitized loans declines below 
the recorded value, an irapairment charge would be provided 
through the Corapany's provision and allowance for loan 
losses. No such irapairraent charges were recorded during the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. 
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Key assumptions used in estimating the value of the 
Company's previously securitized loans were as follows: 

NOTE EIGHT 
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Prepayment speed (CPR); 
From January 2008 - March 2008 
From April 2008 - December 2008 
From January 2009 - December 2009 
From January 2010 - December 2012 
Thereafter 

December 
2008 

-
-
9% 
9% 
5% 

31 
2007 

16% 
15% 
13% 
9% 
5% 

Weighted-average cumulafive defaults 9.39% 9.54% 

Prepayment speed, or constant prepayraent rate (CPR), 
represents the annualized monthly prepayment amount as a 
percentage of the previous month's outstanding loan balance 
minus the scheduled principal payment. Weighted-average 
cumulative defaults represent actual loan defaults experienced 
life-to-date plus forecasted loan defaults projected over the 
remaining life of the collateral loans, divided by the original 
collateral balance. 

During 2008, 2007, and 2006 the Corapany recognized 
$5.6 miUion, $7.3 mflhon, and $9.4 mflhon, respectively, of 
interest income on the previously securitized loans and 
received cash of $8.7 mflhon, $16.1 mflhon, and $24.2 
million, respectively, coraprised of principal and interest 

The carrying araount of goodwill approximated $54.9 
miflion and $55.0 miUion at Deceraber 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively. The Corapany completed its annual assessment 
of the carrying value of goodwill during 2008 and concluded 
that its carrying value was not impaired. 

The foflowing table sumraarizes core deposit intangibles as 
of Deceraber 31, 2008 and 2007, which are subject to 
araortization: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 

Gross carrying amount 
Accumulated amortization 

Net core deposit intangible 

6,580 
(3,991) 

6,580 
(3,352) 

$ 2,589 $ 3,228 

During 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Corapany recognized 
pre-tax araortization expense of $639,000, $706,000, and 
$723,000, respectively, associated with its core deposit 
intangible assets. The estimated amortization expense for core 
deposit intangible assets for each of the next five years is as 
follows: 

payments frora borrowers. 

NOTE SEVEN 
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

A summary of preraises and equipment and related 
accuraulated depreciation as ofDeceraber 31 is suraraarized as 
foflows: 

Estimated 
(in thousands) Useful Life 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 10 to 30 yrs. 
Equipment 3 to 7 yrs. 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Net premises and equipment 

2008 2007 

$ 19,967 $ 16,958 
67,204 64,050 
42,330 44,253 

129,501 125,261 
(69,363) (70,626) 

S 60,138 $ 54,635 

(in thousands) 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

NOTE NINE 

Projected 
Amortization Expense 

SCHEDULED MATURITIES OF 
TIME DEPOSITS 

Scheduled 
Deceraber 31, 

(in thousands) 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

Over five years 

Total 

raaturities of time 
2008 are summarized 

deposits 
as follows 

$ 469 
437 
409 
392 
376 

$ 2,083 

outstanding at 

$ 607,752 

156,755 
159,079 
20,329 

23,027 
148 

$ 967,090 

40 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Scheduled raaturities of tirae deposits of $100,000 or raore 
outstanding at December 31, are summarized as follows: 

(dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 

Within one year 

Over one through two years 

Over two through three years 

Over three through four years 

Over four through five years 

Total 

S 159,739 

36,595 
55,754 

4,636 

5,303 

S 262,027 

$ 178,078 

33,162 
10,013 
2,701 

2,683 

$ 226,637 

NOTE TEN 
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

On January 30, 2008, the Company's Board of Directors 
authorized the redemption of the Junior Subordinated 
Debentures owed to City Holding Capital Trust at a price of 
104.58% of the principal amount on AprU 1, 2008. The 
Corapany incurred charges of $1.2 miUion to fully amortize 
issuance costs incurted in 1998 that were being amortized over 
the original 30 year life of the securities and for the early 
redemption premiura. Due to the Corapany's announced 
intentions to redeem the debentures on April 1, 2008, the 
debentures were reflected as short-term borrowings at 
December 31, 2007. Interest expense and average balances 
for the debentures are considered long-terra debt for the year 
ended December 31, 2007. 

A suramary of short-term bortowings are as follows: 

(dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 

Balance at end ofyear: 
Securities repurchase agreements 
FHLB advances 
Junior subordinated debentures 

owed to City Holding Capital 
Trust 

Total 

Avg. outstanding during the year: 
Securities repurchase agreements 
FHLB advances 
Junior subordinated debentures 

owed to City Holding Capital 
Trust 

Max. outstanding at any month end: 
Seeurities repurchase agreements 
FHLB advances 

$ 

S_ 

s 

$ 

122,904 
71,559 

-
194,463 

132,030 
4,837 

-

137,921 
71,559 

$ 

_$_ 

$ 

$ 

119,554 
25,526 

16,836 
161,916 

117,442 
42,896 

-

127,744 
46,430 

$ 

1. 

$ 

$ 

115,675 
20,895 

-
136,570 

98,116 
45,589 

-

115,674 
67,334 

Junior subordinated debentures 
owed to City Holding Capital 
Trust 16,836 

Weighted-average interest rate: 
During the year: 

Securities repurchase agreements 
FHLB advances 
Junior subordinated debentures 

owed to City Holding Capital 
Trust 

End ofthe year: 
Securities repurchase agreements 
FHLB advances 
Junior subordinated debentures 

owed to City Holding Capital 
Trust 

NOTE ELEVEN 
LONG-TERM DEBT 

1.89% 
2.74% 

-

0.38% 
0.84% 

" 

4.35% 
3.58% 

-

3.95% 
3.68% 

9.15% 

3.95% 
2.69% 

-

4.43% 
3.40% 

' 

The components of long-term debt are summarized as 
follows: 

(in thousands) 

FHLB Advances 
FHLB Advances 
FHLB Advances 
Junior subordinated 

debentures owed to City 
Holding Capital Trust Ul 

Total Long-term debt 

Maturity 

2009 
2010 
2011 

2038 

Weighted-
Average 
Interest 

Rate 

5.92% 
6.30% 
4.45% 

6.32% 

2008 

. 
2,003 

549 

16,495 
$ 19,047 

2007 

2,343 
2,000 

630 

-
$ 4,973 

Through City National, the Company has purchased 63,106 
shares of Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") stock at par 
value as ofDecember 31, 2008. Such purchases are required 
based on Cify National's maximum borrowing capacity with 
the FHLB. Additionally, FHLB stock entitles the Company to 
dividends declared by the FHLB and provides an additional 
source of short-term and long-term fiinding, in the form of 
collateralized advances. Financing obtained from the FHLB is 
based, in part, on the amount of qualifying collateral available, 
speciflcally U.S. Treasury, U.S. agency debentures and 
raortgage-backed securities and 1-4 faraily residential 
raortgages. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, collateral 
pledged to the FHLB included approxiraately $705.6 raillion 
and $159.1 raillion, respectively, in investment securities and 
one-to-four-family residential property loans. Therefore, in 
addition to the short-terra (see Note Ten) and long-term 
financing discussed above, at December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
Cify National had an additional $631.5 raillion and 
$128.7 raillion, respectively, avaflable frora unused portions of 
lines of credit with the FHLB and other financial institutions. 
During January 2009, the Company reduced its borrowing 
capacity from its line of credit with the FHLB from $631.5 
raillion to $350.0 raillion. 
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The Corapany forraed a statutory business tmst. City 
Holding Capital Tmst III, under the laws of the state of 
Delaware ("Capital Trust 111"). Capital Trust III was created 
for the exclusive purpose of (i) issuing trust preferred 
securities ("Capital Securities"), which represent preferred 
undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the trasts, (ii) 
using the proceeds from the sale of the Capital Securities to 
acquire junior subordinated debentures ("Debentures") issued 
by the Company, and (iii) engaging in only those activities 
necessary or incidental thereto. The trast is considered a 
variable interest entity for which the Company is not the 
primary beneficiary. Accordingly, the accounts ofthe tmst are 
not included in the Company's consolidated financial 
statements (see Note 1). 

Distributions on the Debentures are cumulative and will be 
payable quarterly at an interest rate of 3.50% over the three 
month LIBOR rate, reset quarterly. Interest payments are due 
in March, June, September and Deceraber. The Debentures 
are redeeraable prior to maturity at the option of the Company 
(i) in whole or at any tirae or in part from time-to-time, at 
declining redemption prices ranging from 103.525% to 
100.000% on June 15, 2013, and thereafter, or (ii) in whole, 
but not in part, at any time within 90 days following the 
occurtence and during the continuation of certain pre-defined 
events. 

Payments of distributions on the trast preferred securities 
and payments on redemption of the trast preferred securities 
are guaranteed by the Company. The Company also entered 
into an agreement as to expenses and liabilities with the tmst 
pursuant to which it agreed, on a subordinated basis, to pay 
any costs, expenses or liabilities of the trast other than those 
arising under the trast preferred securities. The obligations of 
the Company under the junior subordinated debentures, the 
related indentures, the trust agreeraent establishing the trust, 
the guarantees and the agreements as to expenses and 
liabilities, in the aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional 
guarantee by the Company ofthe trast's obligations under the 
trast preferred seeurities. The Capital Securities issued by the 
statutory business trusts qualify as Tier 1 capital for the 
Company under curtent Federal Reserve Board guidelines. 

NOTE TWELVE 
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS 

The Company utilized interest rate floors to mitigate 
exposure to interest rate risk. During 2005 and 2006, the 
Corapany entered into interest rate floors with a total notional 
value of $600 raiflion, seven of which (total notional amount 
of $500 million) were designated as cash flow hedges. These 
derivative instmments provided the Corapany protection 
against the impact of declining interest rates on fiiture incorae 
streams from the Company's portfolio of $500 miflion of 
variable-rate loans outstanding. The interest rate floors had 
raaturities between May 2008 and June 2011 and strike rates 
ranging from 6.00% to 8.00%. During 2008, interest rate 
floors with a total notional value of $150 million matured. 
The remaining interest rate floors with a total notional value of 
$450 raillion were sold during 2008. The gains from the sales 
of $16.8 million will be recognized over the remaining lives of 
the various hedged loans. At December 31, 2008, the 
unrecognized gain was approximately $15.3 raillion or $9.3 
mflhon net of taxes. 

The notional amounts and estiraated fair values of interest 
rate floor derivative positions outstanding at year-end are 
presented in the following table. The estiraated fair values of 
the interest rate floors on variable-rate loans are based on 
quoted market prices. 

2008 2007 

(in thousands) 
Notional Estimated Fair Notional Estimated Fair 

Value Value Value Value 

Interest rate tloors on 
variable-rate loans $500,000 $11,362 

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or 
loss on the derivative hedging instruraent is reported in other 
coraprehensive incorae, while the ineffective portion 
(indicated by the excess of the curaulative change in the fair 
value of the derivative over that which is necessary to offset 
the curaulative change in expected fiiture cash flows on the 
hedge transaction) is recorded in current eamings as other 
incorae or other expense. The Company recognized the 
increase in fair value of $4.6 million, net of taxes, in other 
coraprehensive incorae for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2007 
on these derivative instruments. 
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NOTE THIRTEEN 
INCOME TAXES 

Deferted income taxes reflect the net tax effects of 
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 
used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the 
Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows at 
December 31: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 

Deferred tax assets: 
Previously securitized loans 
Allowance for loan losses 
Deferred compensation payable 
Underfiinded pension liability 
Unrealized securities losses 
Accrued expenses 
Impaired building and premises 
Impaired security losses 
Other 

Total Deferred Tax Assets 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Unrealized derivative instrument gains 
Intangible assets 
Deferred loan fees 
Other 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Net Deferred Tax Assets 

No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was 
recorded at December 31, 2008 and 2007 as the Company 
believes it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax 
assets will be realized because they were supported by 
recoverable taxes paid in prior years. 

Significant coraponents of the provision for incorae taxes 
are as follows: 

$ 8,849 
8,612 
2,923 
2,763 

10,140 
1,343 
1,173 

15,059 
1,321 

52,183 

-
2,197 

558 
966 

3,721 
S 48,462 

$ 9,970 
6,885 
3,078 
1,316 
1,189 
1,493 
1,133 

2,531 
27,595 

2,927 
1,947 

786 
1,302 
6,962 

$ 20,633 

(in thousands) 

Current: 
Federal 
State 
Total current 

Deferred: 
Federal 
State 
Total deferred 

Income tax expense 

Income tax (benefit) 
attributable to sec 
transactions 

expense 
urities 

2008 

$ 23,322 
614 

23,936 

(11,118) 
(3,331) 

(14,449) 
S 9,487 

$ (15,306) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2007 

25,326 
1,636 

26,962 

(1,029) 
(147) 

(1,176) 
25,786 

18 

2006 

$ 25,242 
571 

25,813 

517 
1,999 
2,516 

$ 28,329 

$ (798) 

A reconciliation of the significant differences between the 
federal statutory income tax rate and the Company's effective 
incorae tax rate is as follows: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 2006 

$ 28,519 

(671) 969 1,671 

(686) (786) 
(1,026) (867) 
(1,095) 

(194) (414) 
$ 9,487 $ 25,786 

(797) 
(823) 

-
(241) 

$ 28,329 

Computed federal taxes at statutory rate S 13,159 $ 26,' 
State incoine taxes, net of federal tax 

benefit 
Tax effects of: 

Tax-exempt interest income 
Bank-owned life insurance 
Tax reserve adjustment 
Other items, net 

Income tax expense 

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corapany adopted FEN 48. 
The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48 was an increase in 
tax reserves and a decrease of $0.1 million to the January 1, 
2007 retained eamings balance. The entire amount of the 
Corapany's unrecognized tax benefits if recognized, would 
favorably affect the Company's effective tax rate. The 
Corapany does not expect that the araounts of unrecognized 
tax positions will change significantly within the next 12 
months. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance 
of unrecognized tax benefits for the year ended December 31, 
2008 is as follows: 

(in thousands) 

Balance at January 1, 2007 

Additions for current year tax positions 
Additions for prior year tax positions 
Decreases for prior year tax positions 
Decreases related to lapse of applicable statute of 

limitation 
Balance at December 31, 2007 

Additions for current year tax positions 
Additions for prior year tax positions 
Decreases for prior year tax positions 
Decreases for settiements with tax authorities 
Decreases related to lapse of applicable statute of 

limitation 

Balance at December 31, 2008 

1,225 

510 

(219) 
$ 1,516 

198 

(120) 

(1,403) 

(191) 

Interest and penalties on income tax uncertainties are 
included in income tax expense. During 2008, 2007, and 
2006, the provision related to interest and penalties was $0.4 
million, $0.4 million, and $0.4 million, respectively. The 
balance of accmed interest and penalties at December 31, 
2008 and 2007 was $0.5 mfllion and $0.8 million, 
respectively. 
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The Corapany is currently open to audit under the statute of 
limitations by the Intemal Revenue Service for the years ended 
December 31, 2005 through 2007. The Company and its 
subsidiaries state incorae tax returns are open to audit under 
the statute of limitations for the year ended December 31, 
2007. 

NOTE FOURTEEN 
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

During 2003, shareholders approved the City Holding 
Company 2003 Incentive Plan ("the Plan"), replacing the 
Corapany's 1993 Stock Incentive Plan that expired on 
March 8, 2003. Employees, directors, and individuals who 
provide service to the Corapany (collectively "Plan 
Participants") are eligible to participate in the Plan. Pursuant 
to the terms of the Plan, the Compensation Coramittee of the 
Board of Directors, or its delegate, may, from time-to-time, 
grant stock options, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), or 
stock awards to Plan Participants. A maximura of 1,000,000 
shares of the Company's common stock may be issued upon 
the exercise of stock options and SARs and stock awards, but 
no raore than 350,000 shares of comraon stock may be issued 
as stock awards. These limitations may be adjusted in the 
event of a change in the number of outstanding shares of 
comraon stock by reason of a stock dividend, stock split, or 
other sirailar event. Specific terras of options and SARs 
awarded, including vesting periods, exercise prices (stock 
price date of grant), and expiration dates are determined at the 
date of grant and are evidenced by agreements between the 
Company and the awardee. The exercise price of the option 
grants equals the market price of the Company's stock on the 
date of grant. All incentive stock options and SARs will be 
exercisable up to ten years from the date granted and all 
options and SARs are exercisable for the period specified in 
the individual agreement. As ofDecember 31, 2008, 330,250 

stock options had been awarded pursuant to the terms of the 
Plan and 42,675 stock awards had been granted. 

Each award from the Plan is evidenced by an award 
agreeraent that specifies the option price, the duration of the 
option, the number of shares to which the option pertains, and 
such other provisions as the Compensation Committee, or its 
delegate, deterraines. The option price for each grant is equal 
to the fair market value ofa share ofthe Company's cornmon 
stock on the date of grant. Options granted expire at such time 
as the Compensation Conimittee determines at the date of 
grant and in no event does the exercise period exceed a 
maximum of ten years. Upon a change-in-control of the 
Company, as defined in the plans, all outstanding options 
immediately vest. 

A suramary of the Corapany's stock option activity and 
related information is presented below for the years ended 
December 31: 

2008 2007 2006 

Ouistanding at 
January 1 

Granted 
Exercised 
Forfeited 
Outstanding at 

December 31 

Exercisable at end of 
year 

Nonvested at 
beginning ofyear 

Granted during year 

Vested during year 

Forfeited during year 

Nonvested at end of 
year 

Options 

305,909 
31,000 

(66,454) 

-

270,455 

157,205 

102,125 

31,000 

(19,875) 

-

113,250 

Weighted-
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$ 32.05 
34.28 
25.11 

$ 33.96 

32.72 

$ 35.40 

34.28 

32.07 

-

$ 35.68 _ 

Options 

271,709 
47,500 
(7,300) 
(6,000) 

305,909 

203,784 

71,125 

47,500 

(13,500) 

(3,000) 

102,125 

Weighted-
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$ 30.51 
39.34 
21.17 
35.20 

$ 32.05 

30.31 

$ 32.21 

39.34 

32.64 

35.22 

$ 35.40 

Options 

318,132 

(46,423) 

-

271,709 

200,584 

86,125 

(15,000) 

71,125 

Weighted-
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$ 28.56 

-
17.20 

-

$ 30.51 

29.90 

$32.34 

-
32.97 

$32.21 
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Additional information regarding stock options outstanding and exercisable at Deceraber 31, 2008, is provided in the following 
table: 

Ranges of 
Exercise 

Prices 

$13.30 
$28.00 -$33.90 
$35.36-$40.88 

No. of 
Options 

Outstanding 

1,900 
150,555 
118,000 

270,455 

Weighted-
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$ 13.30 
31.70 
37.18 

Weighted-
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 
(Months) 

37 
67 
98 

Intrinsic 
Value 

$ 41 
463 

86 

$ 590 

No. of 
Options 

Currently 
Exercisable 

1,900 
116,305 
39,000 

157,205 

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price 
ofOptions 
Currently 

Exercisable 

$ 13.30 
31.65 
36.87 

Weighted-
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 
(Months) 

37 
65 
84 

Intrinsic 
Value 

$ 41 
364 

-
$ 405 

Proceeds frora stock option exercises totaled $1.7 raillion 
in 2008, $0.2 raillion in 2007, and $0.8 million in 2006. 
Shares issued in connection with stock option exercises are 
issued from available treasury shares. If no treasury shares are 
available, new shares are issued frora available authorized 
shares. During 2008, 2007 and 2006, afl shares issued in 
connection with stock option exercises and restricted stock 
awards were issued from available treasury stock. 

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was 
$1.1 million in 2008, $0.1 million in 2007, and $0.9 million in 
2006. 

Stock-based compensation expense totaled $0.2 raillion in 
2008 and $0.3 raiflion in 2007, and $0.2 raillion in 2006. The 
total incorae tax benefit recognized in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of income related to stock-based 
corapensation was $0.1 million in 2008. Unrecognized stock-
based compensation expense related to stock options totaled 
$0.8 raillion at December 31, 2008. At such date, the 
weighted-average period over which this unrecognized 
expense was expected to be recognized was 1.9 years. 

The fair value for the options was estiraated at the grant 
date using a Black-Scholes option-pricing raodel with the 
following weighted average assuraptions: 

2008 2007 2006 

Risk-fi-ee interest rate 
Expected dividend yield 
Volatility factor 
Expected life of option 

3.98% 
2.59% 
0.498 
8 years 

4.38% 
3.15% 
0.391 
6 years 

3.93% 
2.98% 
0.384 
5 years 

As the Company did not issue any options during the year 
ended December 31, 2006, the factors for the year ending 
December 31, 2006 are consistent with the factors for the year 
ending December 31, 2005. 

The Company records compensation expense with respect 
to restricted shares in an amount equal to the fair market value 
of the common stock covered by each award on the date of 
grant. The restricted shares awarded becorae fially vested after 
various periods of continued eraployment frora the respective 
dates of grant. The Corapany is entitled to an income tax 
deduction in an amount equal to the taxable income reported 
by the holders of the restricted shares when the restrictions are 
released and the shares are issued. Corapensation is being 
charged to expense over the respective vesting periods. 

Restricted shares are forfeited if officers and employees 
terminate prior to the lapsing of restrictions. The Corapany 
records forfeitures of restricted stock as treasury share 
repurchases and any corapensation cost previously recognized 
is reversed in the period of forfeiture. Recipients of restricted 
shares do not pay any cash consideration to the Corapany for 
the shares, have the right to vote all shares subject to such 
grant and receive all dividends with respect to such shares, 
whether or not the shares have vested. The Corapany 
recognized $0.3 million and $0.2 million of compensation 
expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 
December 31, 2007, respectively, within salaries and 
eraployee benefits in the Corapany's Consolidated Statements 
of Income associated with the restricted stock awards issued. 
Unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to 
non-vested restricted shares was $0.8 miflion at December 31, 
2008. At December 31, 2008, this unrecognized expense is 
expected to be recognized over 3.5 years based on the 
weighted average-life ofthe restricted shares. 
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A suramary ofthe Company's restricted shares activity and 
related information is presented below for the years ended 
December 31: 

2008 2007 

Outstanding at January 1 
Granted 
Vested 
Outstanding at December 31 

Restricted 
Awards 

31,818 
8,825 

(4,468) 
36,175 

Average 
Market Price 

At Grant 

$ 39.00 

^ 

Restricted 
Awards 

15,600 
17,650 
(1,432) 
31,818 

Average 
Market Price 

At Grant 

$ 39.01 

Because the Company's employee stock options have 
characteristics significantly different from those of traded 
options and because changes in the subjective input 
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in 
raanagement's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily 
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its 
employee stock options at the time of grant. 

The Corapany provides retireraent benefits to its eraployees 
through the City Holding Corapany 401 (k) Plan and Trust 
("the 401(k) Plan"), which is intended to be compliant with 
Employee Retireraent Incorae Security Act (ERISA) section 
404(c). Any employee who has attained age 21 is eligible to 
participate beginning the first day of the month following 
employment. Unless specifically chosen otherwise, every 
employee is automatically enrolled in the 401(k) Plan and raay 
make before-tax contributions of between P/o and 15% of 
eligible pay up to the dollar limit iraposed by Internal Revenue 
Service regulations. The first 6% of an eraployee's 
contribution is matched 50% by the Company. The employer 
matching contribution is invested according to the investment 
elections chosen by the eraployee. Employees are 100%i vested 
in both employee and eraployer contributions and the eamings 
generated by such contributions. As ofDecember 31, 2008, 
there were 18 investment options, including City Holding 
Company common stock, available under the 401(k) Plan. 

The Company's total expense associated with the 
retirement benefit plan approxiraated $597,000, $592,000, and 
$574,000, in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. The total 
number ofshares ofthe Company's coramon stock held by the 
401(k) Plan as ofDecember 31, 2008 and 2007 is 293,302 and 
370,264, respectively. Other than the 401(k) Plan, the 
Corapany offers no postretirement benefits. 

The Company also maintains a defined benefit pension 
plan ("the Defined Benefit Plan") that covers approxiraately 
300 current and forraer employees. The Defined Benefit Plan 
was frozen in 1999 subsequent to the Company's acquisition 
of the plan sponsor. The Defined Benefit Plan maintains an 
October 31 year-end for purposes of coraputing its benefit 
obligations. 

Primarily as a result of the interest rate environment over 
the past two years, the benefit obligation exceeded the 
estimated fair value of plan assets as ofDecember 31, 2008 
and December 31, 2007. The Company has recorded a 
miniraum pension liability of $4.0 raillion and $0.2 million as 
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, included in 
Other Liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and 
a $4.2 million and $2.0 miUion, net of tax, underfunded 
pension liability in Accumulated Other Coraprehensive 
Income within Shareholders' Equity at December 31, 2008 and 
2007, respectively. The following table summarizes activity 
within the Defined Benefit Plan in 2008 and 2007: 

(in thousands) 

Change in fair value of plan assets: 
Fair value at beginning of measurement period 
Actual (loss) gain on plan assets 
Contributions 
Benefits paid 

Fair value at end of measurement period 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at beginning of 

measurement period 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (loss) gain 
Benefits paid 

Benefit obligation at end of measurement period 
Funded status 

Unrecognized net actuarial gain 
Unrecognized net obligation 
Other comprehensive loss 

Accrued Benefit Cost 

Weighted-average assumptions as of October 31: 
Discount rate 
Expected retum on plan assets 

Pension Benefits 
2008 

$10,806 
(2,994) 

149 
(766) 

7,195 

(11,017) 
(772) 
(158) 
766 

(11,181) 
(3,986) 

7,007 

-
(7,007) 

$ (3,986) 

6.25% 
8.50% 

2007 

$ 8,669 
1,414 
1,324 
(601) 

10,806 

(11,274) 
(658) 
314 
601 

(11,017) 

(211) 

3,162 
(17) 

(3,145) 
$ (211) 

6.25% 
8.50% 

The following table presents the components of the net 
defined benefit pension benefit: 

(in thousands) 

Components of net periodic benefit: 
Interest cost 
Expected retum on plan assets 
Net amortization and deferral 

Net Periodic Pension Cost 

Pension Benefits 
2008 2007 2006 

$ 662 
(857) 
245 

$ 50 

$ 657 
(741) 
320 

$ 236 

$ 650 
(718) 
314 

$ 246 
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The Defined Benefit Plan is adrainistered by the West 
Virginia Bankers Association ("WVBA") and all investraent 
policies and strategies are established by the WVBA Pension 
Committee. The policy established by the Pension Committee 
is to invest assets per target allocations, as detailed in the table 
below. The assets are reallocated periodically to raeet these 
target allocations. The investraent policy is reviewed 
periodically, under the advisement of a certified investraent 
advisor, to determine ifthe policy should be revised. 

The overall investment retum goal is to achieve a retum 
greater than a blended mix of stated indices tailored to the 
same asset raix of the plan assets by 0.5%), after fees, over a 
rolling five-year raoving average basis. Allowable assets 
include cash equivalents, fixed income securities, equity 
securities, exchange-traded index fiinds and guaranteed 
investment contracts. Prohibited investments include, but are 
not limited to, commodities and fiitures contracts, private 
placements, options, limited partnerships, venture capital 
investments, real estate and interest-only, principal-only, and 
residual tranche collateralized mortgage obligations. Unless a 
specific derivative security is allowed per the plan docuraent, 
permission raust be sought frora the WVBA Pension 
Coramittee to include such investments. 

In order to achieve a pradent level of portfolio 
diversification, the securities of any one corapany are not to 
exceed more than 10% of the total plan assets, and no more 
than 25%) of total plan assets are to be invested in any one 
industry (other than securities ofthe U.S. govemment or U.S. 
govemment agencies). Additionally, no more than 20%o of plan 
assets shall be invested in foreign securities (both equity and 
fixed). 

The expected long-term rate of retum for the plan's assets 
is based on the expected return of each of the categories, 
weighted based on the median ofthe target allocation for each 
class, noted in the table below. The allowable, target, and 
curtent allocation percentages of plan assets are as follows: 

Equity securities 
Debt securities 
Other 

Total 

Target 
Allocation 

2007 

70-75% 
20-25% 
0-5% 

Allowable 
Allocation 

Range 

40-80% 
20-40% 
3-10% 

Percentage of Plan Assets 
at December 31 

2008 

64% 
30% 

6% 
100% 

2007 

68% 
27% 
5% 

100% 

The Corapany anticipates raaking a contribution to the plan 
of $0.9 miflion for the year ending December 31, 2009. The 
following table summarizes the expected benefits to be paid in 
each of the next five years and in the aggregate for the five 
years thereafter: 

Plan Year Ending December 31 Expected Benefits to be Paid 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

2014 through 20IS 

(in thousands) 

$ 672 
708 
718 
722 
747 

4,042 

In addition, the Company and its subsidiary participate in 
the Pentegra multi-employer pension plan (the "raulti-
eraployer plan"). This non-contributory defined benefit plan 
covers curtent and former employees of Classic Bancshares 
(acquired by the Company during 2005). The multi-employer 
plan has a June 30 year-end, and it is the policy of the 
Company to ftind the normal cost of the raultieraployer plan. 
No contributions were required for the year ended Deceraber 
31, 2008. The benefits ofthe multi-employer plan were frozen 
prior to the acquisition of Classic Bancshares in 2005, and it is 
the intention of the Company to fund benefit amounts when 
assets ofthe plan are sufficient. 

The Company has entered into employment contracts with 
certain of its curtent and former executive officers. The 
employraent contracts provide for, among other things, the 
payment of severance corapensation in the event an executive 
officer either voluntarily or involuntarily terminates his 
eraployraent with the Company for other than "Just Cause." 
The cost of these benefits was accmed over the five-year 
service period for each executive and is included in Other 
Liabilities within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The 
liabiUty was $2.0 million and $1.9 mfllion at December 31, 
2008 and 2007, respectively. Forthe year ended December 31, 
2006 $0.1 million was charged to operations in connection 
with these contracts. No such charge was incurred for the 
years ended December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007. As 
ofDecember 31, 2007, two officers had left the Company and 
are receiving severance compensation in accordance with the 
terms ofeach oftheir respective agreements. 
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Certain entities previously acquired by the Company had 
entered into individual deferred corapensation and 
supplemental retirement agreements with certain current and 
former directors and officers. The Company has assumed the 
liabilities associated with these agreements, the cost of which 
is being accmed over the period of active service from the date 
of the respective agreeraent. The cost of such agreements 
approximated $0.2 miUion, $0.2 miUion, and $0.2 miUion, 
during 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. The liability for 
such agreeraents approximated $4.5 million and $4.6 million 
at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively 
and is included in Other Liabilities in the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

To assist in fiinding the above liabilities, the acquired 
entities had insured the lives of certain current and former 
directors and officers. The Company is the current owner and 
beneficiary of insurance policies with a eash surrender value 
approximating $7.2 miflion and $7.0 million at December 31, 
2008 and 2007, respectively, which is included in Other Assets 
in the accorapanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

NOTE FIFTEEN 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

City National has granted loans to certain non-executive 
officers and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and 
to their associates totaling $26.1 million at December 31, 2008 
and $25.9 million at December 31, 2007. The loans were made 
in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the 
same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those 
prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with 
third-party lending arrangements. During 2008, total principal 
additions were $8.1 million and total principal reductions were 
$7.2 million. 

Related party deposits of executive officers and directors of 
the Company and its subsidiaries, and their associates totaled 
$17.3 raillion and $11.3 million at Deceraber 31, 2008 and 
2007, respectively. 

NOTE SIXTEEN 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT 

LIABILITIES 

The Corapany has entered into agreeraents with certain of 
its customers to extend credit or provide a conditional 
commitraent to provide payment on drafts presented in 
accordance with the terms of the underlying credit documents. 
Conditional commitments generally include standby and 
coramercial letters of credit. Standby letters of credit represent 
an obligation of the Company to a designated third party 
contingent upon the failure of a custoraer of the Company to 
perform under the terms ofthe underlying contract between the 
customer and the third party. Comraercial letters of credit are 
issued speciflcally to facilitate trade or comnierce. Under the 
terms of a commercial letter of credit, drafts will be drawn 
when the underlying transaction is consummated, as intended, 
between the customer and a third party. The table below 
presents a suramary of the contractual obligations of the 
Company resulting from significant comraitments: 

(in thousands) 2008 2007 

$ 129,794 
34,025 

173,522 
18,388 
159 

$ 135,255 
47,529 
163,332 
16,243 
215 

Commitinents to extend eredit: 
Home equity lines 
Commercial real estate 
Other commitments 

Standby letters ofcredit 
Commercial letters of credit 

Loan commitraents, standby letters of credit and 
commercial letters of credit have credit risks essentially the 
same as that involved in extending loans to custoraers and are 
subject to the Corapany's standard credit policies. Collateral is 
obtained based on raanageraent's credit assessment of the 
customer. Management does not anticipate any material losses 
as a result ofthese commitments. 

The Company and City National are involved in various 
legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. There 
can be no assurance that the ultimate resolution of the curtent 
actions will not materially impact the financial statements or 
that no material actions will be presented in the ftiture. 
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NOTE SEVENTEEN 
PREFERRED STOCKAND SHAREHOLDER 

RIGHTS PLAN 

The Company's Board of Directors has the authority to 
issue preferred stock, and to fix the designation, preferences, 
rights, dividends, and all other attributes of such preferted 
stock, without any vote or action by the shareholders. As of 
December 31, 2008, no such shares are outstanding, nor are 
any expected to be issued, except as might occur pursuant to 
the Stock Rights Plan discussed below. 

The Company's Stock Rights Plan provides that each share 
of common stock carties with it one right. The rights would be 
exercisable only if a person or group, as defined, acquired 
15% or more ofthe Corapany's coramon stock, or announces a 
tender offer for such stock. Under conditions described in the 
Stock Rights Plan, holders of rights could acquire shares of 
preferred stock or additional shares ofthe Corapany's comraon 
stock—or in the event of a 50% or more change in control, 
shares of common stock of the acquirer. The value of shares 
acquired under the plan would equal twice the exercise price. 
The Stock Rights Plan expires on June 12, 2011. 

NOTE EIGHTEEN 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND 

CAPITAL RATIOS 

The principal source of income and cash for City Holding 
(the "Parent Corapany") is dividends from City National. 
Dividends paid by City National to the Parent Company are 
subject to certain legal and regulatory liraitations. Generally, 
any dividends in araounts that exceed the earnings retained by 
City National in the current year plus retained net profits for 
the preceding two years must be approved by regulatory 
authorities. Approval is also required if dividends declared 
would cause City National's regulatory capital to fall below 
specified rainiraura levels. During 2007 and 2008 corabined. 
City National received regulatory approval and paid $88.6 
million in cash dividends to the Parent Company, while 
generating net profits of $78.1 million. Therefore, City 
National will be required to obtain regulatory approval prior to 
declaring any cash dividends to the Parent Company 
throughout 2009. Although regulatory authorities have 
approved prior cash dividends, there can be no assurance that 
future dividend requests will be approved. 

During 2008, the Parent Company used cash obtained from 
the dividends received primarily to: (1) pay comraon dividends 
to shareholders, (2) rerait interest payments on the Company's 
junior subordinated debentures, and (3) fund repurchases of 

the Corapany's common shares. As ofDecember 31, 2008, the 
Parent Corapany reported a cash balance of approxiraately 
$1.4 million. Management believes that the Parent Company's 
available cash balance, together with cash dividends from City 
National, is adequate to satisfy its fiinding and cash needs in 
2009. 

The Company, including City National, is subject to 
various regulatory capftal requirements administered by the 
various banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital 
requirements can initiate certain raandatory, and possibly 
additional discretionary, action by regulators that, if 
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. Under capital 
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt 
corrective action, the Corapany and City National must meet 
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures 
of assets, liabifities, and certain off-balance sheet items 
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The 
Company's and City National's capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to quafltative judgments by the 
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other 
factors. 

Quantitative raeasures established by regulation to ensure 
capital adequacy require the Company and City National to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table 
below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the 
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined). Manageraent 
believes, as ofDeceraber 31, 2008, that the Corapany and City 
National met all capital adequacy requireraents to which they 
were subject. 

As of December 31, 2008, the most recent notifications 
from banking regulatory agencies categorized the Company 
and City National as "well capitalized" under the regulatory 
fraraework for prorapt corrective action. There are no 
conditions or events since these notifications that raanageraent 
believes have changed the institutions' categories. The 
Company's and City National's actual capital araounts and 
ratios are presented in the following table. 

2008 
(dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio 

Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets): 
Consolidated $ 231,106 
City National 190,296 

13.4% 
11.5 

Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assels): 
Consohdated 253,359 
City National 212,549 

Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets): 
Consohdated 253,359 
City National 212,549 

12.3 
10.3 

9.5 
8.0 

2007 
Amounl 

$ 250,876 
219,972 

268,457 
237,554 

268,457 
237,554 

Ratio 

15.1% 
13.5 

14.1 
12.5 

10.3 
9.1 

Well 
Capitalized 

Ratio 

10.0% 
10.0 

6.0 
6.0 

5.0 
5.0 

Minimum 
Ratio 

8.0% 
8.0 

4.0 
4.0 

4.0 
4.0 
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NOTE NINETEEN 
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted Statement 
ofFinancial Accounting Standard No. 157, ("SFAS No. 157"), 
"Fair Value Measurements", which defmes fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value under 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, 
and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. The 
application of SFAS 157 in situations where the market for a 
financial asset is not active was clarified by the issuance of 
FSP No. SFAS 157-3, "Detennining the Fafr Value of a 
Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not 
Active," in October 2008. FSP No. SFAS 157-3 became 
effective immediately and did not significantly impact the 
methods by which the Company determines the fair values of 
its financial assets. In accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Staff Position No. 157-2, "Effective Date of 
FASB Stateraent No. 157," the Company has delayed 
application of SFAS No. 157 for non-financial assets and non-
financial liabilities until January 1, 2009. 

SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabilify 
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market 
for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants on the measurement date. 

SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation 
inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority 
to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy established by 
SFASNo. 157 is as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) or identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that the entity has the abilify to 
access as ofthe raeasurement date. 

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than 
Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and 
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by 
observable market data. 

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a 
corapany's own assuraptions about the assuraptions that 
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

The Company used the following methods and significant 
assumptions to estimate fair value for assets and liabilities 
recorded at fair value. 

Securities Available for Sale. Securities available for sale 
are reported at fair value utilizing Level 1 and Level 2 inputs. 

The fair value of securities available for sale is deterrained by 
obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities 
exchanges or raatrix pricing, which is a raatheraatical 
technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities 
without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific 
securities but rather by relying on the securities' relationship to 
other benchmark quoted securities. 

Previously Securitized Loans. Previously securitized 
loans are reported at fair value utilizing Level 3 inputs. The 
Corapany utilizes an intemal valuation model that calculates 
the present value of estimated future cash flows. The intemal 
valuation model incorporates assuraptions such as loan 
prepayment and defauft rates. Using cash flow modeling 
techniques that incorporate these assumptions, the Corapany 
estimated total future cash collections expected to be received 
from these loans and determined the yield at which the 
resulting discount would be accreted into income. 

Impaired Loans. Loans for which it is probable that 
payment of interest and principal will not be raade in 
accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement 
are considered irapaired. Once a loan is identified as 
individually impaired, management measures irapairraent in 
accordance with SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for 
Irapairraent of a Loan," (SFAS No. 114). The fair value of 
impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, 
including collateral value, liquidation value and discounted 
cash flows. Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance 
represent loans for which the fair value of the expected 
repayments or collateral exceed the recorded investments in 
such loans. At Deceraber 31, 2008, substantially afl of the 
irapaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the 
collateral. In accordance with SFAS No. 157, impaired loans 
where an allowance is established based on the fair value of 
collateral require classification in the fair value hierarchy. 
When the fair value ofthe collateral is based on an observable 
market price or a current appraised value, the Company 
records the impaired loan as nonrecurting Level 2. When an 
appraised value is not available or manageraent determines the 
fair value of the collateral is fiirther impaired below the 
appraised value and there is no observable raarket price, the 
Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3. 

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2008: 

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets; 
Securities available-for-salc $ 411,176 
Previously securitized loans 4,222 

$ 9,710 $ 401,466 $ 
4,222 
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The table below presents a reconciliation and income 
stateraent classification of gains and losses for all assets 
measured at fair value on a recurting basis for Level 3 assets 
for the year ended December 31, 2008. 

(in thousands) 

Previously 

Securitized 

Loans 

Beginning balance, January 1, 2008 

Principal receipts and recoveries 

Transfers into Levei 3 

Ending Balance, December 31, 2008 

$ 6,892 

(2,670) 

$ 4,222 

The Company may be required, from time to time, to 
measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States. These include assets that are raeasured at 
the lower of cost or market that were recognized at fair value 
below cost at the end ofthe period. At December 31, 2008, 
the Company has $23.9 million of impaired loans that are 
measured at fair value on a nonrecurting basis. These assets 
are considered to be measured at Level 2 in the fair value 
measureraent hierarchy. 

Effective January 1, 2008, the Corapany adopted the 
provisions of SFAS No. 159, ("SFAS No. 159") "The Fafr 
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities -
Including an araendment of FASB Stateraent No. 115." 
SFASNo. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many 
financial instraments and certain other items at fair value at 
specified election dates. Unrealized gains and losses on iteras 
for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in 
eamings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value 
option (i) is applicable on an instmment by instmment basis, 
with certain exceptions, (ii) is irrevocable (unless a new 
election date occurs), and (iii) is applied only to entire 
instmments and not to portions of instruments. The Corapany 
has not elected to account for any of its assets at fair value and 
therefore adoption of SFASNo. 159 on January 1, 2008 did 
not effect its financial statements. 

FASB Stateraent No. 107, Disclosures aboutFair Value of 
Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value 
inforraation about financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the balance sheet, for which it is practicable to 
estimate that value. In cases where quoted raarket prices are 
not available, fair values are based on estiraates using present 
value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are 
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the 
discount rate and estiraates of ftiture cash flows. In that regard, 
the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by 
coraparison to independent raarkets and, in many cases, could 
not be realized in immediate settleraent of the inslmraent. 
Stateraent No. 107 excludes certain financial instmments and 

all nonfinancial instraments from its disclosure requirements. 
Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do 
not represent the underlying value ofthe Corapany. 

The following table represents the estimates of fair value of 
financial instmraents: 

(in thousands) 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Securities available-for-sale 
Securities held-to-maturity 
Net loans 
Financial derivative assets 

Liabnities: 
Deposits 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term debt 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
2008 

Carrying 
Amount 

$ 59,629 
424,214 

29,067 
1,790,090 

-
2,041,130 

194,463 
19,047 

Fair 
Value 

$ 59,629 
424,214 

22,050 
1,842,888 

-
2,065,947 

194,544 
19,242 

2007 
Carrying 
Amount 

$ 74,518 
382,098 

34,918 
1,749,440 

11,362 

1,990,081 
161,916 

4,973 

Fair 
Value 

$ 74,518 
382,098 

35,198 
1,744,771 

11,362 

1,993,351 
162,681 

5,206 

The following methods and assumptions were used in 
estimating fair value araounts for financial instraments: 

Cash and cash equivalents: Due to their short-term 
nature, the carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets approximate fair value. 

Securities: The fair value of securities, both available-for-
sale and held-to-maturify, are generally based on quoted 
raarket prices or raatrix pricing, which is a raatheraatical 
technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities 
without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific 
securities but rather by relying on the securities' relationship to 
other benchmark quoted securities. 

Net loans: The fair value ofthe loan portfolio is estimated 
using discounted cash flow analyses at interest rates currently 
being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of 
similar credit qualify. The carrying value of accraed interest 
approximates its fair value. 

Financial Derivative Assets: The estiraated fair values of 
the interest rate floors on variable-rate loans are based on 
quoted market prices. 

Deposits: The fair values of deraand deposits (e.g., interest 
and noninterest-bearing checking, regular savings, and other 
raoney market demand accounts) are, by definition, equal to 
their carrying values. Fair values for certificates of deposit are 
estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies 
interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a 
schedule of aggregate expected monthly maturities of tirae 
deposits. 

Short-term borrowings: Securities sold under agreements 
to repurchase represent borrowings with original maturities of 
less than 90 days. The carrying amount of advances frora the 
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FHLB and bortowings under repurchase agreements 
approximate their fair values. 

Long-term debt: The fair value of long-term borrowings is 
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the 
Corapany's current increraental borrowing rates for sirailar 
types of borrowing arrangements and market conditions of 
similar debt instraments. 

Commitinents and letters of credit: The fair values of 
commitraents are estiraated based on fees currently charged to 
enter into similar agreements, taking into consideration the 
remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' 
credit standing. The fair value of letters of credit is based on 
fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the 
estiraated cost to terminate thera or otherwise settle the 
obligations with the counterparties at the reporting date. The 
amounts of fees currently charged on comraitments and letters 
of credit are deeraed insignificant, and therefore, the estimated 
fair values and cartying values have not been reflected in the 
table above. 

NOTE TWENTY 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY (PARENT 

COMPANY ONLY) FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION 

Condensed Balance Slieets 

(in thousands) 

Assets 
Cash 
Securities available-tbr-sale 
Investment in subsidiaries 
Deferred tax asset 
Fixed assets 
Other assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Junior subordinated debentures 
Dividends payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Shareholders' Equity 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

December 31 
2008 

1,411 
5,489 

290,897 
2,071 

18 
2,500 

$ 

2007 

9,648 
4,856 

299,166 
210 
40 

2,915 

$ 

$ 

$ 

302,386 

16,495 
5,423 

39 

-
21,957 

280,429 

302,386 

$ 

$ 

$ 

316,835 

16,836 
5,024 

366 
615 

22,841 

293,994 

316,835 

Junior subordinated debentures represent the Parent 
Company's amounts owed to City Holding Capital Trust III 
and City Holding Capital Trust at December 31, 2008 and 
2007, respectively. 

Condensed Statements of Income 

(in thousands) 
Year Ended December 31 

2008 2007 2006 

Income 
Dividends from bank subsidiaries 
Other jncome 

Expenses 
Interest expense 
Investment securities losses 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 
Other expenses 

Income Before Income Tax Benefit and 
Equity in Undistributed Net Income 
(Excess Dividends) of Subsidiaries 

Income tax benefit 
Income Before Equity in Undistributed 

Net Tncome (Excess Dividends) of 
Subsidiaries 

(Excess dividends) equity in undistributed net 
inconie ofsubsidiaries 

Net Income 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 

(in Ihousands) 

$ 40,900 
286 

41,186 

1,170 
1,954 
1,208 

413 
4,745 

36,441 
(1,930) 

$ 51,200 
297 

51,497 

1,472 
2 

563 
2,037 

49,460 
(890) 

S 95,200 
366 

95,566 

2,223 

1,368 
639 

4,230 

91,336 
(1,828) 

38,371 

(10,262) 

50,350 93,164 

676 (39,977) 
28,109 $ 51,026 $ 53,187 

Year Ended December 31 
2008 2007 2006 

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Loss on early extinguishment of debentures 
Realized investment securities losses 
Amortization and accretion 
Provision for deprcciation 
(Increase) decrease in other assets 
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities 
Excess dividends (equity in undistributed net 
income) of subsidiaries 

Net Cash Provided by Operating 
Activities 

Investing Activities 
Purchases of available for sale securities 
Proceeds from sales of available for sale 

securities 
Investment in subsidiaries 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Redemption of junior subordinated debentures 
Dividends paid 
Purchases of treasury stock 
Exercise ofstock options 
Excess tax benefits from stock-based 

compensation arrangements 
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 
(Decrease) Increase in Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 
End of Year 

$ 28,109 

-
1,954 

17 
22 

(463) 
(463) 

10,263 

39,439 

(5,312) 

186 
(11,687) 
(16,813) 

16,495 
(16,836) 
(21,483) 
(10,974) 

1,669 

266 
(30,863) 

(8,237) 
9,648 

$ 1,411 

$ 51,026 

-
2 

12 
35 

(1,511) 
(739) 

(676) 

48,149 

(2,555) 

718 
(11,030) 
(12,867) 

-
-

(20,601) 
(48,232) 

154 

3 
(68,676) 

(33,394) 
43,042 

$ 9,648 

$ 53,187 

1,368 

-
25 
43 

4,322 
1,159 

39,977 

100,081 

(755) 

932 
(40,017) 
(39,840) 

-
(13,002) 
(19,350) 
(24,334) 

798 

269 
(55,619) 

4,622 
38,420 

$ 43,042 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
CITY HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTE TWENTY-ONE 
SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 

INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

A suraraary of selected quarterly financial information for 
2008 and 2007 follows: 

(in thousands, except per share data) 

Fi rs t 

Q u a r t e r 

Second 

Q u a r t e r 

Thi rd 

Q u a r t e r 

Fou r th 

Q u a r t e r 

36,522 

290 

36,663 

200 

36,722 

10,241 

36,863 

10,582 

2008 

Interest income S 37,520 $ 36,968 

Taxable equivalent adjustment 214 204 

Interest income (FTE) 37,734 37,172 

Interest expense 13,601 11,494 

Net interest income 24,133 25,678 

Provision for loan losses 1,883 850 

Investment seeurities gains (losses) 2 -

Noninterest income 

Noninterest expense 

Income (loss) before income tax 

expense 

Income tax expense (benefit) 

Taxable equivalent adjustment 

Net income (loss) 

26,481 

2,350 

(27,467) 

26,281 

5,340 

(10,800) 

17,316 

19,899 

19,669 

6,417 

214 

$ 13,038 

14,195 

18,761 

20,262 

6,679 

204 

$ 13,379 

14,709 

19,246 

(7,873) 

(5,516) 

200 

$ (1,557) 

13,981 

17,766 

6,356 

1,907 

200 

S 4,249 

Basic earnings (loss) per common 

share 

Diluted eamings (loss) per common 

share 

Average common shares outstanding; 

Basic 

Diluted 

$ 0.81 S 0.83 $ (0.16) $ 0.26 

0.80 0.83 (0.16) 0.26 

16,147 16,103 16,142 16,078 

16,205 16,167 16,195 16,100 

2007 

Interest income S 39,199 $ 39,530 $ 39,597 $ 38,989 

Taxable equivalent adjustment 230 23_1 224 226 

Interest income (FTE) 39,429 39,761 39,821 39,215 

Interest expense 14,756 15,196 15,374 14,950 

Net interest income 24,673 24,565 24,447 24,265 

Provision for loan losses 900 1,600 1,200 1,650 

Investment seeurities gains (losses) - 45 (I) I 

Noninterest income 

Noninterest expense 

Income before income tax expense 

Income tax expense 

Taxable equivalenl adjustment 

Net income 

Basic eammgs per common share $ 0.76 $ 0.72 $ 0.76 S 0.78 

Diluted earaings per common share 0.76 0.72 0.76 0.78 

Average common shares outstanding: 

Basic 17,369 17,100 16,714 16,359 

Diluted 17,424 17,158 16,767 16,414 

14,352 

17,596 

20,529 

7,067 

230 

$ 13,232 

13,644 

17,525 

19,129 

6,576 

231 

$ 12,322 

13,815 

18,031 

19,030 

6,092 

224 

$ 12,714 

14,280 

17,861 

19,035 

6,051 

226 

$ 12,758 

NOTE TWENTY-TWO 
EARNINGS PER SHARE 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and 
diluted eamings per share: 

(in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006 

Net income 

Average shares outstanding 
Effect of dilutive securities: 

Employee stock options 
Shares for diluted eamings per 

share 

Basic eamings per share 

Diluted eamings per share 

S 

$ 
s 

28,109 

16,118 

49 

16,167 

1.74 

1.74 

$ 

$ 
$ 

51,026 

16,877 

58 

16,935 

3.02 

3.01 

$ 

$ 
$ 

53,187 

17,701 

61 

17,762 

3.00 

2.99 

Options to purchase 97,500 and 88,750 shares of coraraon 
stock at exercise prices between $36.48 and $40.88 and 
$36.48 and $39.34 per share were outstanding during 2008 
and 2007, respectively, but were not included in the 
computation of diluted eamings per share because the exercise 
price of the options was greater than the average market price 
of the coramon shares and therefore, the effect would be 
antidilutive. 

NOTE TWENTY-THREE 
DISPOSITIONS 

On Febmary 1, 2007, the Corapany sold its raerchant 
processing agreeraents to NOVA Inforraation Systems, Inc. 
(NOVA) and recognized a pretax gain of $1.5 miUion. As part 
of this agreement, the Company and NOVA entered into an 
alliance and sales agreement that NOVA will provide payraent 
processing services to the Corapany's merchant customers. 

On August 4, 2006, the Company sold its credit card 
portfolio of approximately $11.5 mflhon to Elan Financial 
Services (Elan), a wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp. 
As part ofthis agreeraent, the Company and Elan have entered 
into an agent marketing agreement that will enable the 
Company's custoraers to continue to receive credit card 
products, while allowing Elan the exclusive raarketing rights to 
the Corapany's current and prospective custoraer base. This 
transaction was corapleted during the third quarter of 2006 and 
resulted in a pre-tax gain ofapproximately $3.6 million for the 
Company. 
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25 Gatewater Road 
Charleston, West Virginia 25313 
(304)769-1106 
www.citj'holding.com 

About Form 10-K 
A copy of the Company's annual report on Form 10-
K, as filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, will be forwarded without charge to any 
shareholder upon written request to; 

Investor Relation.s 
City Holding Conipany 
Post Office Box 7520 
Charleston, West Virginia 25356-0520 

City Holding Company's common stock trades on 
The NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol 
CHCO. 

http://www.citj'holding.com


CITY HOLDING COMPANY DIRECTORS 
AS OF MARCH 2009 

Name 

HughR. Clonch 

Oshel B. Craigo 

John R. Elliot 

William H. File III 

Robert D. Fisher 

Jay C. Goldman 

Charles R. Hageboeck 

David W. Hambrick 

Tracy W. Hylton II 

C. Dallas Kayser 

Philip L. McLaughlin 

James L. Rossi 

Sharon H. Rowe 

Mary E. Hooten Williams 

Executive Officers 

Charles R. Hageboeck 
President & CEO 

David L. Bumgamer 
Chief Financial Officer 

Principal Occupation During The Past Five Years 

President, Clonch Industries (lumber manufacturer). 

Owner and ChiefExecutive Officer, Better Foods, Inc. (restaurants). 

Owner and President, AMFM, Inc. (nursing homes). 

Partner, File Payne Scherer & File, PLLC (law firm). 

Managing Member, Adams, Fisher & Chappell, PLLC (law firm). 

President, Goldman and Associates (real estate). 

President and Chief Executive Officer, City Holding Company and 
City National Bank since February 1, 2005. 

Self-employed attomey since 2004. 

President, Eller, Inc. (constmction and reclamation company). 

Senior Partner, Kayser, Layne & Clark, PLLC (law firm). 

Chairman ofthe Board, City Holding Company and City National 
Bank of West Virginia since April 2007. 

ChiefFinancial Officer, Valtronics, Inc. (manufacturers of products 
for commercial and industrial customers) since July 2008. 

Senior Consultant, Charles Ryan Associates (formerly 
Gallagher/Goodwin-Gregg Communications Group) 
(marketing/public relations) since May 2006. 

Vice President, Virginia Street Properties Corp. and Manager, 
Hooten Properties (real estate rental companies) since January 2006. 

Craig G. Stilwell John A. DeRito 
Executive Vice President Executive Vice President 
Retail Banking Conimercial Banking 

John W. Alderman 
General Legal Counsel 
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